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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

         2           MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         3                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

         4  BY MR. BOIES:

         5  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. EUBANKS.

         6  A.   GOOD AFTERNOON.

         7  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO BEGIN WITH ONE OF THE LAST THINGS

         8  THAT YOU SAID TO MR. HOLLEY, AND THAT IS, YOU SAID THAT

         9  SYMANTEC HAD NOT HAD ANY PROBLEMS, AT LEAST ANY PROBLEMS

        10  THAT YOU CAN REMEMBER, GETTING WHAT IT NEEDED FROM

        11  MICROSOFT IN TERMS OF DISCLOSURES AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT.

        12  DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        13  A.   I RECALL THAT, YES.

        14  Q.   NOW, ONE OF THE REASONS THAT SYMANTEC DIDN'T HAVE ANY

        15  PROBLEMS IS THAT SYMANTEC HAD A FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT WITH

        16  MICROSOFT; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?

        17  A.   I DON'T ACTUALLY KNOW THAT TO BE TRUE, BUT I WILL

        18  ACCEPT THAT.

        19  Q.   YOU KNOW WHAT FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENTS ARE, DO YOU NOT,

        20  SIR?

        21  A.   I'VE HEARD OF THEM.  I BELIEVE IT'S A DEVELOPER

        22  AGREEMENT.

        23  Q.   AND IT'S A DEVELOPER AGREEMENT THAT MICROSOFT ENTERS

        24  INTO WITH CERTAIN ISV'S; CORRECT, SIR?

        25  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT.  I KNOW IT'S A DEVELOPER
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         1  AGREEMENT.  I DON'T KNOW WHO THEY ENTERED IN WITH.  I

         2  BELIEVE THAT THAT'S LOGICAL.

         3           I'M NOT TRYING TO BE ARGUMENTATIVE.  I DON'T KNOW

         4  A LOT ABOUT FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENTS, BUT THERE ARE

         5  AGREEMENTS WITH MICROSOFT AND COMPANIES LIKE SYMANTEC TO

         6  HELP GET DEVELOPER SUPPORT.

         7  Q.   AND THOSE AGREEMENTS ARE VERY IMPORTANT TO SYMANTEC,

         8  ARE THEY NOT, SIR?

         9  A.   YES.

        10  Q.   LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS LOOK AT, AND I WOULD

        11  OFFER, GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2071, AND SEE IF THAT REFRESHES

        12  YOUR RECOLLECTION.

        13           MR. HOLLEY:  FOUNDATION OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

        14  THE WITNESS WAS ASKED ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT AT HIS

        15  DEPOSITION, AND I RECALL HE HAD NEVER SEEN IT BEFORE.

        16           THE COURT:  NEITHER HAVE I.

        17           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, THIS IS A SIGNED CONTRACT

        18  BETWEEN SYMANTEC AND MICROSOFT CORPORATION.  UNLESS

        19  MR. HOLLEY WANTS TO DISPUTE ITS AUTHENTICITY, IN WHICH, I

        20  SUPPOSE, WE COULD GIVE MICROSOFT A TRIAL SUBPOENA FOR

        21  THEIR COPY OF IT, I DON'T THINK THERE IS REALLY ANY

        22  FOUNDATIONAL ISSUE WITH RESPECT TO THIS DOCUMENT.

        23           THE COURT:  HOW DO YOU KNOW IT'S SYMANTEC?

        24           MR. BOIES:  I BELIEVE THAT THE WITNESS HAS

        25  IDENTIFIED THE PEOPLE, YOUR HONOR, IN--
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         1           THE COURT:  THERE IT IS, ON PAGE--

         2           MR. BOIES:  SECTION 12.1.

         3           THE COURT:  YES, COMPANY SYMANTEC.

         4           MR. HOLLEY?

         5           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I STAND ON WHAT I

         6  ORIGINALLY SAID.  THESE DOCUMENTS WERE PRODUCED BY

         7  SYMANTEC, WHICH IS NOT REPRESENTED HERE BY COUNSEL AT THE

         8  MOMENT, BUT IT'S MORE HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL.  MICROSOFT

         9  REGARDS THIS DOCUMENT AS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION WHICH IS

        10  NOT IN THE PUBLIC DOMAIN.  AND IF YOUR HONOR CHOOSES TO

        11  ADMIT THE DOCUMENT IN EVIDENCE, I ASK THAT IT BE RECEIVED

        12  UNDER SEAL.

        13           THE COURT:  IS MICROSOFT ASKING TO ADMIT IT UNDER

        14  SEAL?

        15           MR. HOLLEY:  THAT IS CORRECT, YOUR HONOR.  AND

        16  THE POSITION OF THE LAWYERS REPRESENTING SYMANTEC AT THE

        17  DEPOSITION WHERE THIS DOCUMENT WAS SHOWN TO MR. EUBANKS

        18  WAS IT SHOULD REMAIN UNDER SEAL FROM THEIR STANDPOINT,

        19  YOUR HONOR.  LATHAM & WATKINS IS NOT HERE AT THE MOMENT,

        20  AND THEY--

        21           THE COURT:  WELL, HE CERTAINLY KNEW THAT

        22  MR. EUBANKS WAS GOING TO TESTIFY.  THEY COULD HAVE BEEN

        23  HERE TO PROTECT IT.

        24           MR. BOIES:  AND HE WAS EXPLICITLY NOTIFIED, I'M

        25  INFORMED BY MR. COVE, ON SUNDAY NIGHT.
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         1           THE COURT:  NOW, ARE YOU SAYING THAT YOU ARE

         2  PROTECTING MICROSOFT'S INTEREST IN ITS CONFIDENTIALITY?

         3  IS THAT CORRECT?

         4           MR. HOLLEY:  YES, YOUR HONOR, AND I WAS JUST

         5  OBSERVING THAT THE POSITION THAT LATHAM & WATKINS TOOK ON

         6  BEHALF OF SYMANTEC AT THE DEPOSITION WAS THAT THEY

         7  BELIEVED THAT--

         8           THE COURT:  WELL, MAYBE THEY DID, BUT AT THE

         9  MOMENT THEY'RE NOT HERE TO INVOKE WHATEVER PRIVILEGE THEY

        10  MAY HAVE WITH RESPECT TO ITS CONFIDENTIALITY.

        11           MR. HOLLEY:  I TAKE THAT POINT, YOUR HONOR, THEY

        12  ARE NOT HERE.

        13           THE COURT:  AND WHAT IS IT--WHAT IS IT ABOUT THE

        14  DOCUMENT THAT MICROSOFT REGARDS AS HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL?

        15           MR. HOLLEY:  THERE ARE PROVISIONS IN THIS

        16  DOCUMENT THAT CONCERN THE WAY MICROSOFT INTERACTS WITH

        17  DEVELOPERS WHO WRITE ON TOP OF WINDOWS THAT ARE

        18  PROPRIETARY VIS-A-VIS THE OTHER OPERATING SYSTEM VENDORS

        19  SUCH AS SUN MICROSYSTEMS, APPLE AND IBM.

        20           THE COURT:  I DON'T SEE THAT THEY'RE MENTIONED IN

        21  THIS DOCUMENT.

        22           MR. HOLLEY:  THIS IS INFORMATION, YOUR HONOR,

        23  THAT WOULD BE INTERESTING TO THEM BECAUSE THEY COMPETE

        24  WITH MICROSOFT FOR DEVELOPER ATTENTION, AND SO THE WAY IN

        25  WHICH MICROSOFT DEALS WITH ITS DEVELOPER PARTNERS IS
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         1  PROPRIETARY VIS-A-VIS OTHER PRIOR SUPPLIERS OF OPERATING

         2  SYSTEMS.

         3           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I HAVE GONE THROUGH THIS

         4  DOCUMENT.  I DO NOT BELIEVE THAT THERE IS ANYTHING IN THIS

         5  DOCUMENT THAT WOULD JUSTIFY CLOSING THE COURTROOM UNDER

         6  APPLICABLE LAW.

         7           THE COURT:  I DON'T SEE ANYTHING IN HERE THAT

         8  WOULD BE OF BENEFIT TO COMPETITORS.

         9           GOVERNMENT'S 2771 IS ADMITTED, AND THE MOTION TO

        10  SEAL IS DENIED.

        11                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2771 WAS

        12                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        13  BY MR. BOIES:

        14  Q.   HAVE YOU HAD A CHANCE TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT

        15  EXHIBIT 2071, MR. EUBANKS?

        16           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        17  A.   YES, I HAD A CHANCE TO BRIEFLY LOOK AT IT JUST NOW.

        18  Q.   AND DO YOU RECOGNIZE THE PERSON WHO SIGNED THIS

        19  DOCUMENT ON BEHALF OF SYMANTEC?

        20  A.   YES.  IT'S ENRIQUE SALEM.  HE WORKED FOR ME.

        21  Q.   AND HE WAS THE SYMANTEC VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF

        22  TECHNICAL OFFICER; IS THAT CORRECT?

        23  A.   AT THE TIME HE SIGNED THAT, YES.

        24  Q.   NOW, HAVING LOOKED AT THIS DOCUMENT, DOES IT REFRESH

        25  YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT SYMANTEC HAD A FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT
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         1  WITH MICROSOFT?

         2  A.   THIS DOCUMENT SAYS THAT SYMANTEC HAD A FIRST WAVE, SO

         3  I WOULD BELIEVE THAT'S TRUE, AND I KNOW WE HAD A WORKING

         4  RELATIONSHIP WITH THEM.  I DIDN'T USE THE TERM "FIRST

         5  WAVE" MYSELF IN CONVERSATIONS, BUT CLEARLY THAT'S WHAT'S

         6  THIS DOCUMENT IS ABOUT.

         7  Q.   WHEN YOU WERE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF

         8  SYMANTEC, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER YOU KNEW THAT THIS WAS

         9  CALLED A FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT OR NOT, DID YOU KNOW THAT AN

        10  AGREEMENT EXISTED BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND SYMANTEC THAT

        11  PROVIDED WHAT THIS AGREEMENT PROVIDES?

        12  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF I WAS AWARE OF A FORMAL CONTRACT.  I

        13  KNOW THAT WE WORKED WITH MICROSOFT AND OTHER VENDORS TO

        14  PROVIDE AGREEMENTS, WHEN NECESSARY, TO PROTECT

        15  INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND TO PROTECT THE MARKETING AND

        16  DEVELOPER PROGRAMS THAT MIGHT BE AROUND THEM.

        17  Q.   THIS AGREEMENT GOES WAY BEYOND JUST PROTECTING

        18  INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, DOES IT NOT, SIR?

        19  A.   IT DOES.  AS I THINK I SAID, IT OUTLINES SOME

        20  DEVELOPER RELATIONS, MARKETING PROGRAMS, WAYS THAT THE

        21  COMPANIES WOULD WORK TOGETHER.  THESE ARE NORMAL KIND OF

        22  AGREEMENTS THE PEOPLE WOULD HAVE WITH MULTIPLE DIFFERENT

        23  COMPANIES, AND I DIDN'T PERSONALLY REVIEW OR BE INVOLVED

        24  IN NEGOTIATION OF THESE KIND OF AGREEMENTS.

        25  Q.   WELL, MICROSOFT WAS NOT JUST ANOTHER COMPANY.
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         1  MICROSOFT WAS THE MOST IMPORTANT COMPANY THAT SYMANTEC

         2  DEALT WITH; CORRECT, SIR?

         3  A.   THE MOST IMPORTANT PEOPLE WE DEALT WITH WERE OUR

         4  CUSTOMERS.  MICROSOFT WAS A CLEARLY IMPORTANT

         5  CUST--COMPANY TO WORK WITH IN THE INDUSTRY, SO WAS IBM, SO

         6  WAS SUN.

         7           I WILL GIVE YOU THAT IF I HAVE TO STACK-RANK

         8  THEM, THAT MICROSOFT IS PROBABLY AS IMPORTANT AS ANY OF

         9  THE OTHERS.  THEY'RE VERY IMPORTANT.

        10  Q.   SIR, YOU DON'T MEAN THAT MICROSOFT IS AS IMPORTANT.

        11  YOU KNOW PERFECTLY WELL THAT MICROSOFT WAS THE MOST

        12  IMPORTANT OPERATING SYSTEM COMPANY TO SYMANTEC, DON'T YOU,

        13  SIR?  YOU KNOW THAT; RIGHT?

        14  A.   I SAID, THEY'RE AS IMPORTANT AS ANYONE ELSE.  THEY'RE

        15  INCREDIBLY IMPORTANT.  OUR BUSINESS WAS DEPENDENT IN

        16  HAVING THESE RELATIONSHIPS.  MICROSOFT WAS MORE IMPORTANT

        17  THAN OTHERS.  I WILL GIVE YOU THAT.

        18  Q.   OKAY.

        19  A.   SO WE COULD KEEP MOVING ON THIS.

        20  Q.   GOOD--BUT I DON'T WANT YOU TO JUST GIVE ME SOMETHING

        21  TO KEEP MOVING, SIR.  I WANT TO BE ABSOLUTELY CERTAIN THAT

        22  YOU UNDERSTAND THE DISTINCTION BETWEEN BEING AS IMPORTANT

        23  AND BEING MUCH MORE IMPORTANT.  I DON'T WANT YOU TO JUST

        24  GIVE ME THAT TO KEEP THINGS MOVING.  I WANT YOUR TRUTHFUL

        25  ANSWER, AND I DON'T WANT YOU TO TELL ME THAT MICROSOFT WAS
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         1  THE MOST IMPORTANT OPERATING SYSTEM COMPANY UNLESS YOU

         2  BELIEVE IT.

         3  A.   AND SIR, WHAT I'M TRYING TO SAY IS, I UNDERSTAND YOUR

         4  POINT.  THEY'RE VERY IMPORTANT, THEY'RE A VERY BIG

         5  COMPANY, BUT OUR WHOLE BUSINESS PHILOSOPHY WASN'T TO

         6  STACK-RANK THEM.  WE DIDN'T HAVE TO STACK-RANK.  WE WORKED

         7  WITH MULTIPLE COMPANIES.  WE TREATED EVERY ONE OF THEM

         8  LIKE THEY WERE EXTREMELY IMPORTANT BECAUSE WHAT REALLY

         9  MATTERED WAS MEETING CUSTOMER NEEDS.

        10           NOW, THAT'S HOW WE RAN THE COMPANY, AND WE DIDN'T

        11  SIT AROUND AND TALK ABOUT ONE BEING MORE IMPORTANT THAN

        12  THE OTHER.  BUT CLEARLY, MICROSOFT WAS CRITICALLY

        13  IMPORTANT, THEIR OPERATING SYSTEMS WERE CRITICALLY

        14  IMPORTANT TO OUR CUSTOMERS, SO THEY WERE IMPORTANT TO

        15  SYMANTEC.

        16  Q.   WELL, SIR, YOU SAY YOU DIDN'T SIT AROUND SAYING ONE

        17  COMPANY WAS MORE IMPORTANT THAN ANOTHER.  ONE OF THE

        18  THINGS THAT YOU HAD TO DO AT SYMANTEC WAS TO FILE REPORTS

        19  WITH THE SEC; CORRECT, SIR?

        20  A.   YES, WE DID FILE SEC REPORTS.

        21  Q.   AND ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU HAD TO DO WITH SEC

        22  REPORTS WAS TO TRUTHFULLY AND ACCURATELY DESCRIBE WHAT WAS

        23  IMPORTANT TO YOUR BUSINESS; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?

        24  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        25           MR. HOLLEY:  LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE
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         1  HANDED GOVERNMENT EXHIBITS 2272 AND GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

         2  2274-A, WHICH I WOULD OFFER.  AND WITH RESPECT TO

         3  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2274-A--THAT IS, THE FIRST 22 PAGES OF

         4  A SYMANTEC 10-Q--I HAVE THE COMPLETE DOCUMENT HERE, AND

         5  I'M PREPARED TO OFFER THE ENTIRE DOCUMENT IF COUNSEL

         6  WISHES, OR THEY MAY ADD ANY ADDITIONAL PAGES THAT THEY

         7  WISH LATER, BUT FOR MY PURPOSES, WE DIDN'T HAVE TO HAVE

         8  THE ENTIRE DOCUMENT.

         9           THE COURT:  WHAT IS 2272?

        10           MR. BOIES:  2272--

        11           THE COURT:  THE ENTIRE 10-Q?

        12           MR. BOIES:  NO, IS A 10-Q THAT IS FOR THE PERIOD

        13  ENDING JUNE 30, 1996.  IT IS AN EARLIER 10-Q.

        14           EXHIBIT 2274 IS FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER OF

        15  1998, AT WHICH TIME THE COMPANY WAS FILING SUBSTANTIALLY

        16  LONGER 10-Q'S.

        17           THE COURT:  YOU ARE OFFERING THEM BOTH?

        18           MR. BOIES:  I'M OFFERING THEM BOTH, YOUR HONOR.

        19           MR. HOLLEY:  I JUST OBSERVED FOR THE RECORD, YOUR

        20  HONOR, THAT NEITHER OF THESE DOCUMENTS THAT ARE PRINTED ON

        21  THE SEC'S SYSTEM ARE IN A FORMAT THAT CHOPS OFF MOST OF

        22  THE NUMBERS ON THE RIGHT-HAND SIDE, BUT I DOUBT THAT THAT

        23  AFFECTS WHAT MR. BOIES INTENDS TO ASK ABOUT, AND I HAVE NO

        24  OBJECTION TO THE EXHIBITS.

        25           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  GOVERNMENT'S 2272 AND
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         1  2274-A ARE ADMITTED.

         2                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NOS. 2272 AND

         3                          2274-A WERE ADMITTED INTO

         4                          EVIDENCE.)

         5  BY MR. BOIES:

         6  Q.   MR. EUBANKS, LET ME BEGIN WITH EXHIBIT 2272, AND I

         7  WOULD ASK YOU TO TURN TO THE PAGE THAT IS NUMBERED 15.

         8  AND PERHAPS FOR REASONS RELATING TO THE SEC DATABASE, THE

         9  PAGE NUMBER 15 APPEARS IN THE MIDDLE OF THE PAGE.

        10  A.   YES, I FOUND IT.

        11  Q.   OKAY.  I WOULD LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE

        12  PARAGRAPH THAT IMMEDIATELY PRECEDES THE PAGE NUMBER 15,

        13  AND IN PARTICULAR TO THE LAST FULL SENTENCE THERE, AND

        14  THEN CONTINUING ON, WHERE IT SAYS, "SHOULD WINDOWS 95 OR

        15  WINDOWS NT NOT ACHIEVE TIMELY MARKET ACCEPTANCE, OR SHOULD

        16  THE COMPANY"--AND THE COMPANY THERE IS SYMANTEC; RIGHT,

        17  SIR?

        18  A.   YES, I THINK SO, YES.

        19  Q.   --"OR SHOULD THE COMPANY BE UNABLE TO SUCCESSFULLY OR

        20  TIMELY DEVELOP PRODUCTS THAT OPERATE UNDER THESE OPERATING

        21  SYSTEMS, THE COMPANY'S FUTURE REVENUES AND OPERATING

        22  RESULTS WOULD BE IMMEDIATELY AND SIGNIFICANTLY ADVERSELY

        23  AFFECTED.  IN ADDITION, AS THE TIMING OF DELIVERY AND

        24  ADOPTION OF MANY OF SYMANTEC'S PRODUCTS IS DEPENDENT ON

        25  THE ADOPTION RATE OF THESE OPERATING SYSTEMS, WHICH THE
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         1  COMPANY AND SECURITY ANALYSTS ARE UNABLE TO PREDICT, THE

         2  ABILITY OF SYMANTEC AND SECURITIES ANALYST TO FORECAST THE

         3  COMPANY'S NET REVENUES HAVE BEEN, AND WILL CONTINUE TO BE,

         4  ADVERSELY IMPACTED."

         5           NOW, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT THE REASON WAS THIS

         6  WAS PUT INTO THE 10-Q WAS THAT AT LEAST AS OF JUNE 30,

         7  1996, THE COMPANY BELIEVED THAT ITS REVENUES AND PROFITS

         8  AND FUTURE WAS PARTICULARLY DEPENDENT ON THE ACCEPTANCE OF

         9  WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS NT?

        10  A.   YES, I THINK IT'S AN ADEQUATE AND APPROPRIATE WARNING

        11  TO SHAREHOLDERS THAT WERE DEPENDENT ON OPERATING SYSTEMS

        12  SUCH AS WINDOWS 95 AND NT.

        13  Q.   AND JUST TO BE CLEAR, THE 10-Q FILING WITH THE SEC

        14  DIDN'T SAY, "WE'RE DEPENDENT ON OPERATING SYSTEMS SUCH AS

        15  WINDOWS 95 OR WINDOWS NT."  IT SAID "WINDOWS 95 AND

        16  WINDOWS NT."  IT SINGLED THOSE OUT PARTICULARLY; CORRECT,

        17  SIR?

        18  A.   YES, I WOULD AGREE WITH YOU THAT THAT WOULD BE A

        19  BETTER WAY OF SAYING IT.  IT WOULD HAVE BEEN A MORE

        20  ACCURATE WAY TO SAY "SHOULD"--TO SAY "INCLUDING OTHERS."

        21  SO I AGREE.  THE WAY YOU WORDED IT WOULD HAVE BEEN BETTER.

        22  Q.   RIGHT.  SO, WHAT YOUR TESTIMONY IS WHEN THIS WAS

        23  BEING PREPARED, IT WAS JUST A SLIPUP THAT THE PEOPLE

        24  PREPARING THIS OFFICIAL SEC DOCUMENT FOCUSED ON WINDOWS 95

        25  AND WINDOWS NT AS OPPOSED TO SAYING THESE ARE JUST
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         1  EXAMPLES; IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

         2  A.   NO, I'M SAYING THERE IS A CERTAIN TIME TO DO THESE.

         3  THEY CAN ALWAYS BE IMPROVED.  I THINK THE WAY YOU WORDED

         4  IT WOULD HAVE BEEN AN IMPROVEMENT, AND I THINK THIS

         5  ADEQUATELY REFLECTED THE CAUTION THAT WAS BEING INTENDED

         6  BY THE DOCUMENT.

         7  Q.   DO YOU THINK, SIR, THAT THIS ACCURATELY REFLECTS THE

         8  FACT THAT, IN REGULAR COURSE OF YOUR BUSINESS, YOU

         9  BELIEVED THAT THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEMS, WINDOWS NT,

        10  AND WINDOWS 95 BACK IN 1996, WERE PARTICULARLY IMPORTANT,

        11  MORE IMPORTANT THAN OTHER OPERATING SYSTEMS, SO MUCH MORE

        12  IMPORTANT THAT THE OTHER OPERATING SYSTEMS DIDN'T EVEN GET

        13  MENTIONED IN THIS PARTICULAR AREA?

        14  A.   I THINK THAT IN THESE DOCUMENTS IT'S CLEARLY

        15  REFLECTED THAT MORE REVENUE COMES FROM MICROSOFT OPERATING

        16  SYSTEMS THAN ANY OTHER, AND THEREFORE, WE WOULD BE MORE

        17  EXPOSED IF WE HAD PROBLEMS WITH THE THINGS IDENTIFIED HERE

        18  WITH WINDOWS 95.  I THINK THIS IS WELL-UNDERSTOOD IN THE

        19  PUBLIC RECORD THAT MICROSOFT HAS THE LARGEST SHARE OF OUR

        20  REVENUE AND THE LARGEST SHARE OF THE INDUSTRY'S OPERATING

        21  SYSTEMS AND PC'S.

        22  Q.   GOOD.  THAT WAS REALLY THE POINT I WAS TRYING TO GET

        23  AT.

        24           LET ME GO BACK NOW TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2071.

        25  AND THIS AGREEMENT BETWEEN SYMANTEC AND MICROSOFT LISTS A
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         1  NUMBER OF TECHNICAL BENEFITS AND MARKETING BENEFITS THAT

         2  MICROSOFT IS GOING TO PROVIDE TO SYMANTEC; CORRECT, SIR?

         3  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         4  Q.   FOR EXAMPLE, UNDER "TECHNICAL BENEFITS," NUMBER TWO,

         5  IT SAYS MICROSOFT WILL PROVIDE SYMANTEC WITH EARLY ACCESS

         6  TO SELECT SPECIFICATIONS AND BETA RELEASES OF WINDOWS NT 5

         7  AND SDK'S ON AN ONGOING BASIS VIA CD'S AND SECURE FTP

         8  SITE.

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        10  A.   YES.

        11  Q.   AND WAS THAT SOMETHING THAT WAS IMPORTANT TO

        12  SYMANTEC?

        13  A.   YES.

        14  Q.   INCIDENTALLY, YOU TOLD MR. HOLLEY THAT THERE WERE

        15  SOME ISV'S THAT HAD AN EQUIVALENT TO SORT OF PLATINUM CARD

        16  PRIVILEGES.  THEY GOT, AS YOU PUT IT, EXTRA SPECIAL

        17  SUPPORT.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        18  A.   I RECALL WHAT I SAID WAS THAT ISV'S WERE TREATED IN A

        19  DIFFERENT CATEGORY THAN OTHER PEOPLE AS A GROUP.  I DIDN'T

        20  ACTUALLY SAY SOME ISV'S OVER OTHERS.  I WAS REFERRING TO

        21  ISV'S, AS A GROUP, NEEDING TO GET ADVANCED INFORMATION,

        22  CONTRASTED WITH END-USER CUSTOMERS, WHO USUALLY GET THE

        23  OPERATING SYSTEM WHEN IT SHIPS.  THAT'S WHAT I WAS

        24  DISCUSSING AT THE TIME.

        25  Q.   SO, WHAT YOU WERE SAYING IS THAT ISV'S, AS A GROUP,
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         1  ALL OF THEM, NEED THE SPECIAL SUPPORT; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE

         2  SAYING?

         3  A.   I'M SAYING THAT ISV'S, AS A GROUP, NEEDED INFORMATION

         4  THAT WOULD BE CONTAINED IN DEVELOPER PROGRAMS TO WRITE

         5  APPLICATIONS.

         6  Q.   ISV'S, AS A GROUP, WOULD FIND IT IMPORTANT TO HAVE

         7  THE KIND OF ASSISTANCE THAT IS PROVIDED IN THE SYMANTEC

         8  FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT; CORRECT, SIR?

         9  A.   WELL, I CAN'T SPEAK FOR OTHER ISV'S.  SYMANTEC FOUND

        10  THIS TO BE NECESSARY.  I THINK ALL PEOPLE DEVELOPING

        11  APPLICATIONS NEED ACCESS TO THE API'S, THE USE OF THE

        12  OPERATING SYSTEM.

        13           THE KIND OF CODE SYMANTEC DID WAS PARTICULARLY

        14  TUNED TO THE INNARDS OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM, AND WORKED

        15  OFTEN AT A VERY LOW LEVEL IN THE OPERATING SYSTEM.  SO, WE

        16  HAD SOME UNIQUE NEEDS AT SYMANTEC THAT WERE DIFFERENT

        17  THAN, SAY, AN INDEPENDENT SOFTWARE VENDOR THAT WAS DOING

        18  APPLICATIONS.  SO, THERE ARE DIFFERENCES IN WHAT DIFFERENT

        19  ISV'S WOULD NEED.

        20  Q.   NOW, THE FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT IS DESIGNED TO HELP

        21  ISV'S WHO ARE PRODUCING APPLICATIONS; CORRECT, SIR?

        22  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT.  I DON'T KNOW ABOUT THE FIRST-WAVE

        23  PROGRAM, AS I TOLD YOU, BUT THIS APPEARS TO BE A PROGRAM

        24  THAT HELPS DEVELOPERS GET ACCESS TO INFORMATION.

        25  Q.   WELL, THE FIRST LINE OF IT SAYS THAT THIS IS OFFERED
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         1  TO FACILITATE THE CREATION OF APPLICATIONS THAT WILL

         2  SUPPORT THE CURRENTLY UNRELEASED VERSIONS OF MICROSOFT'S

         3  WINDOWS NT VERSION 5.0 AND WINDOWS 98 OPERATING SYSTEMS;

         4  CORRECT, SIR?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   AND YOU DON'T HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT THAT?

         7  A.   NO.

         8  Q.   BUT IT'S YOUR TESTIMONY THAT AT THE TIME THAT YOU

         9  WERE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, YOU WERE SIMPLY UNAWARE OF

        10  ANYTHING CALLED A "FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT"?

        11  A.   I DON'T RECALL THE FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT.  I DON'T

        12  RECALL DISCUSSING IT WITH PEOPLE AT SYMANTEC.

        13  Q.   DO YOU RECALL THAT IN RETURN FOR GETTING ALL OF THE

        14  ADVANTAGES FROM MICROSOFT THAT ARE IN THE FIRST-WAVE

        15  AGREEMENT, THAT SYMANTEC HAD TO AGREE TO DO CERTAIN THINGS

        16  FOR MICROSOFT?

        17  A.   WELL, I READ THAT IN THE DOCUMENT HERE.

        18  Q.   FOR EXAMPLE, IF YOU HAVE AN HTML-BASED USER

        19  INTERFACE, INTERNET EXPLORER 4.0 IS REQUIRED TO BE SET AS

        20  THE DEFAULT BROWSER; CORRECT, SIR?

        21           AND IF YOU NEED YOUR RECOLLECTION REFRESHED, I

        22  WOULD REFER YOU TO THE THIRD PAGE OF THE DOCUMENT,

        23  PARAGRAPH B-3, WHICH IS AT THE TOP OF THE PAGE, WHERE IT

        24  SAYS, "THE COMPANY," REFERRING TO SYMANTEC, "WILL ADHERE

        25  TO THE FOLLOWING USER INTERFACE GUIDELINES."
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         2  A.   YES.

         3  Q.   AND THE FIRST ONE IS THAT IF THE USER INTERFACE IS

         4  HTML-BASED, INTERNET EXPLORER 4.0 MUST BE SET AS THE

         5  DEFAULT BROWSER.

         6  A.   YES.

         7  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE OF THAT REQUIREMENT WHEN YOU WERE THE

         8  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF SYMANTEC?

         9  A.   NO.

        10  Q.   I'M SORRY?

        11  A.   NO.

        12  Q.   LET ME GO DOWN TO THE LAST OF THE FIVE ITEMS THAT ARE

        13  SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH THREE.

        14           PARAGRAPH THREE ALSO SAYS THAT IF THE APPLICATION

        15  SYMANTEC IS WRITING IS WRITTEN IN JAVA, THE MICROSOFT

        16  VIRTUAL MACHINE FOR JAVA WILL BE THE DEFAULT VIRTUAL

        17  MACHINE, AND AFC WILL BE USED FOR UI ELEMENTS.

        18           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   WHEN YOU WERE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF

        21  SYMANTEC, WERE YOU AWARE THAT THIS WAS A REQUIREMENT OF

        22  SYMANTEC?

        23  A.   NO.

        24  Q.   IN APRIL OF THIS YEAR, YOU TESTIFIED YOU LEFT

        25  SYMANTEC, AND YOU WENT TO YOUR NEW COMPANY, WHICH I'M
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         1  PROBABLY GOING TO HAVE TO PRONOUNCE, I WILL MAKE IT TRUE.

         2  IS IT "UH-BLISK," IS IT?

         3  A.   "OB-LISK."

         4  Q.   AT OBLISK, IS IT IMPORTANT TO HAVE A FIRST-WAVE

         5  AGREEMENT?

         6  A.   IT'S IMPORTANT TO WORK WITH DEVELOPERS OF

         7  DIRECTORIES, WEB SERVERS AND OPERATING SYSTEMS.  THAT'S

         8  THE KEY ISSUE HERE, AND THAT'S WHAT'S REALLY IMPORTANT.

         9  Q.   THAT MAY VERY WELL BE OR POSSIBLY MAY NOT BE THE

        10  CASE, BUT MY QUESTION IS FOCUSING ON FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENTS

        11  WITH MICROSOFT.  AND MY QUESTION IS WHETHER IT IS

        12  IMPORTANT TO YOUR CURRENT COMPANY, OF WHICH YOU ARE THE

        13  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, TO HAVE A FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT

        14  WITH MICROSOFT.

        15  A.   WELL, FIRST, I DON'T KNOW IF WE HAVE A FIRST-WAVE

        16  AGREEMENT, AND I DON'T THINK HAVING A FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT

        17  IS THE ISSUE.  HAVING THE--THE ISSUE IS HAVING ACCESS TO

        18  THE INFORMATION.  AS LONG AS WE GET ACCESS TO THE

        19  INFORMATION, THEN I'M HAPPY, AND OUR DEVELOPERS ARE HAPPY,

        20  AND OUR CUSTOMERS END UP HAPPY.

        21           SO, IF THIS IS THEIR PROGRAM, THEN WE WOULD

        22  EVALUATE THAT PROGRAM.  BUT AGAIN, I THINK I TOLD YOU AT

        23  THE DEPOSITION, I DON'T KNOW IF OBLISK HAS A FIRST-WAVE

        24  AGREEMENT.  I THINK WE ARE GETTING THE ADEQUATE SUPPORT WE

        25  NEED IN DEVELOPING--WE ARE DEVELOPING, AND THAT'S WHAT'S
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         1  REALLY CRITICAL.

         2  Q.   RECOGNIZING THAT ACTUALLY GETTING THE SUPPORT YOU

         3  NEED IS CRITICAL--AND I ACCEPT THAT, SIR--

         4  A.   THANK YOU.

         5  Q.   --IS IT, NEVERTHELESS, SOMETHING THAT YOU, AS THE

         6  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF OBLISK, WANT TO KNOW, IS SORT

         7  OF WHAT ARE THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH YOU'RE

         8  GETTING THAT INFORMATION?

         9  A.   WELL, I GUESS IT WOULD DEPEND ON WHAT THEY ARE.  IF

        10  THERE'S (SIC) STRINGS ATTACHED TO THEM THAT I WOULDN'T

        11  AGREE WITH, I WOULD PROBABLY WANT TO KNOW THAT.

        12  Q.   YES.  AND YOU CAN'T KNOW THAT UNTIL YOU KNOW WHAT THE

        13  STRINGS ARE.  YOU CAN'T KNOW WHETHER THE STRINGS ARE

        14  IMPORTANT UNTIL YOU KNOW WHAT THEY ARE; RIGHT?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   SO, DID YOU TRY TO FIND OUT WHAT THEY WERE?

        17  A.   I'M SORRY, WHAT WHAT WAS?

        18  Q.   WHAT THE STRINGS WERE TO THE FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT FOR

        19  OBLISK.

        20  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF OBLISK HAS A FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT.

        21  Q.   DID YOU TRY TO FIND THAT OUT?

        22  A.   NO.

        23  Q.   AS YOU SAY, I DID TAKE YOUR DEPOSITION BEFORE, AND I

        24  DID RAISE THIS QUESTION WITH YOU BEFORE.  AND IN THE WEEKS

        25  THAT HAVE GONE BY SINCE YOUR DEPOSITION, DID YOU MAKE ANY
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         1  INQUIRY ABOUT WHETHER OR NOT OBLISK HAD A FIRST-WAVE

         2  AGREEMENT, AND IF SO, WHAT THE STRINGS WERE?

         3  A.   NO.

         4  Q.   YOU DID DO OTHER THINGS TO PREPARE FOR THIS

         5  TESTIMONY, DID YOU NOT, SIR?

         6  A.   I MET WITH MY LAWYER, YES.

         7  Q.   DID YOU MEET WITH ANYONE OTHER THAN YOUR LAWYER?

         8  A.   I MET WITH THE GENTLEMEN AT THE TABLE NEXT TO YOUR

         9  TABLE.  THE GENTLEPEOPLE.

        10  Q.   YOU MEAN THE MICROSOFT LAWYERS?

        11  A.   YES.

        12  Q.   AND DID YOU GO OVER DOCUMENTS WITH THEM?

        13  A.   I THINK WE LOOKED AT A COUPLE OF DOCUMENTS.

        14  Q.   AND DID YOU GO OVER SUBJECTS THAT WOULD BE COVERED IN

        15  THIS DEPOSITION, OR THIS TESTIMONY?

        16  A.   YES.

        17  Q.   BUT IT IS YOUR TESTIMONY THAT NOBODY RAISED THE

        18  FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT THAT WE TALKED ABOUT AT YOUR

        19  DEPOSITION; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

        20  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER IN ANY OF THE DISCUSSIONS WITH THE

        21  MICROSOFT LAWYERS OR MY LAWYER ANYTHING BEING RAISED ABOUT

        22  FIRST WAVE.

        23           MR. BOIES:  LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE HANDED

        24  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2072, WHICH I WOULD OFFER.

        25           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION.
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         1           THE COURT:  WHAT IS IT?

         2           MR. BOIES:  THIS IS AN E-MAIL STRING OR THREAD,

         3  AS I GUESS THEY'RE CALLED, BETWEEN PEOPLE AT OBLISK, AND I

         4  WILL IDENTIFY THROUGH THE WITNESS THE IDENTITY OF THE

         5  AUTHORS AND RECIPIENTS OF THESE E-MAILS, TO THE EXTENT THE

         6  WITNESS IS ABLE.

         7           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 2072 IS ADMITTED.

         8                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2072 WAS

         9                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        10  BY MR. BOIES:

        11  Q.   AND ACTUALLY, I THINK SOME OF THE E-MAILS GO FROM

        12  PEOPLE AT OBLISK TO MICROSOFT AND FROM MICROSOFT TO PEOPLE

        13  AT OBLISK.  THEY'RE NOT MERELY INTERNAL OBLISK E-MAILS.

        14           THIS WAS A DOCUMENT THAT WE WENT OVER AT YOUR

        15  DEPOSITION.  DO YOU REMEMBER THAT, SIR?

        16  A.   YES.

        17  Q.   AND ONE OF THE THINGS THAT WE NOTED AT YOUR

        18  DEPOSITION WAS THAT IN AUGUST OF 1998, THE E-MAIL AT THE

        19  VERY BOTTOM OF THE FIRST PAGE, THERE WAS AN E-MAIL THAT

        20  WAS SENT IN WHICH OBLISK INDICATED THAT IT WANTED TO, AS

        21  IT PUT--AS IT'S PUT HERE, WRAP UP THE FIRST-WAVE

        22  AGREEMENT; CORRECT, SIR?  AND GOING ON OVER TO THE SECOND

        23  PAGE.

        24  A.   UM-HMM, YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

        25  Q.   AND DO YOU KNOW OR CAN YOU IDENTIFY FOR US WHO THE
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         1  AUTHOR OF THIS E-MAIL IS.

         2  A.   NAND IS THE HEAD OF PRODUCT MANAGEMENT OF OBLISK AND

         3  ONE OF THE FOUNDERS.

         4  Q.   SO, THIS IS AN E-MAIL FROM THE HEAD OF PRODUCT

         5  MANAGEMENT AND ONE OF THE FOUNDERS OF OBLISK.

         6           AND IT IS AN E-MAIL TO MICROSOFT; CORRECT, SIR?

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   AS I UNDERSTAND YOUR TESTIMONY, AFTER YOUR

         9  DEPOSITION, YOU DID NOT FOLLOW UP TO SEE WHETHER THIS

        10  FIRST-WAVE AGREEMENT HAD ACTUALLY BEEN ENTERED INTO OR

        11  NOT; IS THAT CORRECT?

        12  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        13  Q.   I MIGHT ALSO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE E-MAIL AT

        14  THE VERY TOP OF THE FIRST PAGE.  THIS IS AN E-MAIL TO

        15  NAND, WHO YOU IDENTIFIED AS OBLISK'S PRODUCT MANAGER AND

        16  ONE OF THEIR FOUNDERS, AND IT IS FROM ANOTHER INDIVIDUAL,

        17  AND CAN YOU IDENTIFY WHO THAT INDIVIDUAL IS.

        18  A.   SANDEEP IS A FOUNDER AND CHAIRMAN OF OBLISK.

        19  Q.   THIS IS ANOTHER FOUNDER AND THE CHAIRMAN OF YOUR

        20  COMPANY?

        21  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        22  Q.   AND SO, THE CHAIRMAN OF YOUR COMPANY AND ONE OF THE

        23  COMPANY'S FOUNDERS WRITES TO ANOTHER OF THE COMPANY'S

        24  FOUNDERS, "WE NEED TO BE TOTALLY IN BED WITH MICROSOFT, AS

        25  OVER THE LONG RUN, PEOPLE LIKE ENTEVA, WHO ARE FOCUSED
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         1  ONLY ON MICROSOFT, MAY BE OUR REAL COMPETITION"; CORRECT,

         2  SIR?

         3  A.   YES, THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.

         4  Q.   NOW, THIS WAS WRITTEN BEFORE YOU WENT TO OBLISK;

         5  CORRECT, SIR?

         6  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         7  Q.   IS SANDEEP STILL THE CHAIRMAN OF OBLISK?

         8  A.   YES, HE IS.

         9  Q.   HAVE YOU EVER HAD ANY CONVERSATIONS WITH THE CHAIRMAN

        10  OF YOUR COMPANY CONCERNING THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS

        11  STATEMENT?

        12  A.   I'M SORRY, YOU MEAN THE SUBJECT OF--YOU DON'T MEAN

        13  THE SUBJECT OF THE E-MAIL ITSELF, THE "RE: FORWARD FORWARD

        14  FW:DS DEV LAB"?  YOU ARE TALKING MORE ABOUT THE BROAD

        15  ISSUE OF MICROSOFT?

        16  Q.   I'M TALKING ABOUT HIS STATEMENT THAT OBLISK NEEDS TO

        17  BE TOTALLY IN BED WITH MICROSOFT, AS OVER THE LONG RUN,

        18  PEOPLE LIKE ENTEVA, WHO ARE FOCUSED ONLY ON MICROSOFT, MAY

        19  BE OUR REAL COMPETITION.  AND THAT WAS REALLY MY POINT ON

        20  THAT.

        21  A.   WE HAD ENDLESS AND MANY DISCUSSIONS IN THE COMPANY

        22  THAT WE NEEDED TO SUPPORT THE FIVE DIRECTORY VENDORS THAT

        23  WE OUTLINED EARLIER:  MICROSOFT, IBM, ORACLE, NETSCAPE AND

        24  NOVELL, AND THAT WE HAD TO SUPPORT THOSE FIVE DIRECTORY

        25  VENDORS, HAVE SUPERB RELATIONSHIPS WITH THEM, AND ADD
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         1  VALUE TO THEIR DIRECTORIES, IF WE WERE GOING TO BE

         2  SUCCESSFUL.

         3           WE HAD THIS DISCUSSION MANY, MANY TIMES.  I HAVE

         4  THAT WRITTEN ON THE BOARD IN MY OFFICE, SO THOSE FIVE

         5  NAMES, AND THOSE ARE THE ONES WE ARE GOING TO SUPPORT.

         6  SO, WE'VE HAD MANY DISCUSSIONS ABOUT THE INCREDIBLE

         7  IMPORTANCE OUR CUSTOMERS PLACE IN SUPPORTING THESE FIVE

         8  VENDORS.

         9  Q.   NOW, OF COURSE, WHEN THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COMPANY

        10  WROTE THIS E-MAIL, HE DIDN'T SAY, "WE NEED TO BE TOTALLY

        11  IN BED WITH THESE FIVE COMPANIES."  HE SAID, "WE NEED TO

        12  BE TOTALLY IN BED WITH MICROSOFT"; CORRECT, SIR?

        13  A.   HE WAS RESPONDING TO A THREAD OF MESSAGES WHICH

        14  INCLUDE DISCUSSIONS OF OTHER VENDORS AND DISCUSSIONS

        15  OUTSIDE OF THE CONTEXT OF JUST MICROSOFT.  SINCE NOVELL

        16  AND NETSCAPE ARE VENDOR--ARE INVESTORS IN SYMANTEC--I'M

        17  SORRY, IN OBLISK, WE HAVE TO BE SURE PEOPLE INTERNALLY

        18  UNDERSTAND THAT WE ARE SEPARATING OUT WHO OUR INVESTORS

        19  ARE WITH THE DIRECTORIES THAT OUR CUSTOMERS WANT US TO

        20  SUPPORT.

        21           AND I THINK THAT THERE HAS BEEN SOME FOCUS

        22  INTERNALLY--I'M SURE THAT WE WOULD DO NOTHING THAT WOULD

        23  GET US TO PICK SIDES BETWEEN NOVELL, NETSCAPE AND

        24  MICROSOFT IN ANY KIND OF BICKERING OVER THIS, BUT FOCUS ON

        25  THE FACT THAT WE ARE GOING TO SUPPORT THESE FIVE
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         1  DIRECTORIES, MAKE THAT PUBLIC STATEMENT, AND BE CLEAR THAT

         2  PEOPLE UNDERSTAND THAT.  THAT'S BEEN THE ESSENCE AND THE

         3  SENSE OF THESE DISCUSSIONS.

         4  Q.   EVEN THOUGH YOUR INVESTORS INCLUDE NOVELL AND DO NOT

         5  INCLUDE MICROSOFT?

         6  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.  MICROSOFT IS NOT AN INVESTOR.

         7  Q.   THE CHAIRMAN OF YOUR COMPANY, WHEN HE WAS WRITING

         8  THIS TO ANOTHER ONE OF THE FOUNDERS, WAS SINGLING OUT

         9  MICROSOFT; CORRECT, SIR?

        10  A.   YES.  IN THIS E-MAIL HE WAS SINGLING OUT MICROSOFT AS

        11  ONE OF THE VENDORS WE NEED TO SUPPORT.

        12  Q.   AH, THERE WE GO AGAIN.  HE DIDN'T SAY, "THESE ARE ONE

        13  OF THE VENDORS THAT WE NEED TO SUPPORT," DID HE?  THAT'S

        14  NOT WHAT HE SAID.  HE SAID, "WE NEED TO BE TOTALLY IN BED

        15  WITH MICROSOFT."  NOT "ONE OF THEM," NOT "ONE OUT OF

        16  FIVE," BUT HE WAS SAYING "MICROSOFT."

        17           AND IT'S A SIMPLE POINT, SIR.  HE DIDN'T SAY "ONE

        18  OF."  HE WAS FOCUSING JUST ON MICROSOFT; ISN'T THAT FAIR?

        19  A.   "FAIR" IS AN INTERESTING CHOICE OF WORDS.  I THINK I

        20  UNDERSTAND YOUR POINT.  THIS E-MAIL FOCUSES ON MICROSOFT,

        21  THAT IS CORRECT.

        22  Q.   OKAY.  AND ARE YOU AWARE OF THE EXTENT TO WHICH, IF

        23  ANY, MICROSOFT KEEPS A LIST OF ISV'S THAT IT CONSIDERS TO

        24  BE FRIENDS AND ISV'S THAT IT CONSIDERS TO BE ENEMIES?

        25  A.   I DON'T KNOW OF SUCH A LIST.  A LIST OF ISV'S THAT
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         1  ARE FRIEND AND FOE?  NO, I DON'T KNOW ABOUT THAT LIST AT

         2  MICROSOFT.

         3           MR. BOIES:  LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE SHOWN,

         4  AND I WOULD OFFER, GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2290.

         5           MR. HOLLEY:  OBJECTION.  LACK OF FOUNDATION, YOUR

         6  HONOR.  THIS WITNESS HAS NEVER SEEN THIS DOCUMENT.  IT'S

         7  AN INTERNAL MICROSOFT DOCUMENT USED IN THE BRISTOL

         8  LITIGATION, SO I DON'T KNOW WHAT BASIS AND--AND SO WE HAVE

         9  NO IDEA WHAT IT IS OTHER THAN WHAT MR. BOIES IS ABOUT TO

        10  SAY IT IS.

        11           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, THE FACT THAT IT IS AN

        12  INTERNAL MICROSOFT--

        13           THE COURT:  THAT'S WHAT I WAS GOING TO SUGGEST.

        14  IT'S AN INTERNAL MICROSOFT E-MAIL STRING, IS IT NOT?

        15           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, IT IS A DOCUMENT THAT

        16  THIS WITNESS HAS NEVER SEEN BEFORE, SO, AS YOUR HONOR--

        17           THE COURT:  MR. WARDEN SHOWED A WITNESS YESTERDAY

        18  DOCUMENTS THAT, BY THE REAM, HE HAD NEVER SEEN BEFORE.  HE

        19  COULD CERTAINLY SHOW THIS DOCUMENT TO THE MAN.

        20           MR. HOLLEY:  WELL, THOSE WERE DOCUMENTS, AS I

        21  UNDERSTAND IT, YOUR HONOR, THAT WERE EITHER PRODUCED FROM

        22  THE FILES OF THE COMPANY IN WHICH HE IS THE SENIOR

        23  EXECUTIVE OFFICER, OR FROM COMPANIES WITH WHICH HIS

        24  COMPANY AOL IS INVOLVED IN STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIPS LIKE

        25  SUN.  THIS IS A DOCUMENT FROM MICROSOFT THAT THIS WITNESS
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         1  HAS NEVER SEEN BEFORE.

         2           THE COURT:  WELL, IF IT COMES FROM MICROSOFT, ARE

         3  YOU DISPUTING ITS AUTHENTICITY?

         4           MR. HOLLEY:  NO, BUT I THINK IT IS SUBJECT TO ALL

         5  SORTS OF MISREPRESENTATION, YOUR HONOR, BECAUSE THE AUTHOR

         6  OF THE DOCUMENT IS NOT HERE, AND WE DON'T KNOW WHAT IT IS.

         7           AND MR. EUBANKS WILL BE UNABLE TO PROVIDE US WITH

         8  ANY HELP ABOUT THAT.

         9           THE COURT:  ABOUT 90 PERCENT OF THE DOCUMENTS IN

        10  THIS TRIAL ARE DOCUMENTS IN WHICH THE AUTHOR HASN'T BEEN

        11  HERE TO AUTHENTICATE THEM.

        12           MR. HOLLEY:  WELL, THAT MAY BE TRUE, YOUR HONOR,

        13  AND THIS PARTICULAR--

        14           THE COURT:  THEY COME IN AS BUSINESS RECORDS, AND

        15  THIS IS A BUSINESS RECORD WHICH YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AS BEING

        16  FROM MICROSOFT FILES.

        17           MR. HOLLEY:  WELL, NOBODY IS HERE TO TELL US--

        18           THE COURT:  AS DISMAYING AS THAT MAY BE TO YOU,

        19  YOUR HONOR.

        20           MR. HOLLEY:  NO ONE IS HERE TO SAY WHO TAKESHI

        21  NUMOTO IS, WHAT HIS POSITION AT MICROSOFT CORPORATION IS,

        22  AND WHAT HAPPENED TO THIS DOCUMENT, WHETHER ANYONE READ

        23  IT.  I'M JUST OBSERVING MR. EUBANKS IS NOT GOING TO BE IN

        24  THE POSITION TO HELP US IN THAT REGARD.  AND FOR THAT

        25  REASON--
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         1           THE COURT:  WELL, HE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO HELP US,

         2  BUT IT'S NOT A REASON NOT TO ADMIT IT INTO EVIDENCE, IF

         3  IT'S AUTHENTIC.

         4           MR. HOLLEY:  THAT WOULD BE MY POSITION, YOUR

         5  HONOR, BUT OBVIOUSLY THE COURT FEELS OTHERWISE, SO I

         6  WILL--

         7           THE COURT:  OBJECTION IS OVERRULED.  GOVERNMENT'S

         8  2290 IS ADMITTED.

         9                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2290 WAS

        10                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        11           THE COURT:  AS LONG AS YOU ADMIT THAT IT COMES

        12  FROM THE MICROSOFT FILES.

        13  BY MR. BOIES:

        14  Q.   MR. EUBANKS, WHILE WE WERE ENGAGED WHAT WE WERE

        15  ENGAGED IN, DID YOU HAVE AN OPPORTUNITY TO LOOK AT THIS

        16  DOCUMENT?

        17  A.   I LOOKED AT IT BRIEFLY, YES.

        18  Q.   AND YOU SEE THERE ARE A NUMBER OF ISV'S LISTED?

        19  A.   YES, IT LOOKS LIKE THEY'RE JUDGING ISV'S AS

        20  EITHER--HOW DID YOU PUT IT?--FRIEND OR FOE.

        21  Q.   FRIEND OR--IN THE LANGUAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT, FRIEND,

        22  ENEMY OR NEUTRAL; CORRECT?

        23  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

        24  Q.   AND PRIOR TO MY SHOWING YOU THIS DOCUMENT, WHICH I

        25  TAKE IT YOU HAVE NEVER SEEN BEFORE.
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         1  A.   CORRECT, I HAVE NEVER SEEN IT.

         2  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE THAT MICROSOFT ENGAGED IN THAT

         3  PRACTICE?

         4  A.   NO.  I'M NOT AWARE, AS I THINK I SAID BEFORE.  I'M

         5  REALLY NOT AWARE OF THEM HAVING A PROGRAM TO RATE ISV'S

         6  FRIEND OR FOE.

         7  Q.   I ACCEPT THAT.  LET ME ASK NOW A DIFFERENT QUESTION:

         8  REGARDLESS OF WHETHER YOU WERE AWARE THAT THEY HAD A

         9  FORMAL PROGRAM TO RATE ISV'S AS FRIEND, ENEMY OR NEUTRAL,

        10  WERE YOU AWARE THAT MICROSOFT HAD CLOSER RELATIONSHIPS

        11  WITH CERTAIN ISV'S THAN OTHERS?

        12  A.   I THINK I'M AWARE THAT MICROSOFT DIDN'T FEEL AN

        13  OBLIGATION TO SUPPORT ITS COMPETITORS, TO SUPPORT THE

        14  PEOPLE THAT WERE ITS COMPETITORS, AND THAT'S WHAT I HAVE

        15  ACTUALLY BEEN AWARE OF.  AND I THINK MICROSOFT HAS SAID

        16  THAT IN PUBLIC, IS MY RECOLLECTION, IS IF SOMEONE IS A

        17  COMPETITOR WITH THEM, THEY DON'T FEEL THE OBLIGATION TO

        18  GIVE THEM THE SUPPORT THEY GIVE A NONCOMPETITOR.  THAT'S

        19  MY RECOLLECTION OF IT.

        20           I GUESS LIKE ALL OF US, I WOULD BE KIND OF

        21  CURIOUS HOW I GOT RATED IN THESE SYSTEMS, BUT I THINK THAT

        22  MY EXPERIENCE--AND ALL I COULD TALK ABOUT IS MY OWN

        23  PERSONAL EXPERIENCE--IS EVEN THOUGH WE COMPETED DIRECTLY

        24  WITH MICROSOFT IN SOME AREAS, WE GOT GREAT ISV SUPPORT FOR

        25  THE COMPANY IN ALL THE AREAS WE DIDN'T SUPPORT, AND THAT'S
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         1  MY--THE ONLY THING I CAN REALLY TELL YOU IS MY OWN

         2  PERSONAL EXPERIENCE IN THAT REGARD.

         3  Q.   WELL, SIR, YOU SAY EVEN THOUGH YOU COMPETED WITH

         4  MICROSOFT, YOU MADE A CONSCIOUS EFFORT TO AVOID COMPETING

         5  WITH MICROSOFT BECAUSE YOU WERE AFRAID THAT THEY WOULD

         6  STEP ON YOU.

         7  A.   ABSOLUTELY NOT TRUE.  THAT IS ABSOLUTELY NOT TRUE.

         8  WE MADE A CONSCIOUS EFFORT NOT TO ENGAGE IN BASHING OF

         9  ANYONE IN THE INDUSTRY, EVEN THOUGH SOMETIMES PEOPLE TRIED

        10  OUR PATIENCE.  OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY IS NOT TO ENGAGE IN

        11  BICKERING WITH EACH OTHER, BUT TO FOCUS ON SERVING THE

        12  CUSTOMER.  WE COMPETED DIRECTLY WITH MICROSOFT IN THE JAVA

        13  BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT, THE TOOLS BUSINESS, HEAD-TO-HEAD,

        14  100 PERCENT.

        15  Q.   JUST SO THAT WE ARE CLEAR, SIR, I DIDN'T ASK YOU

        16  ABOUT WHETHER YOU WANTED TO BICKER WITH MICROSOFT OR NOT.

        17  WHAT I SAID IS, WHILE YOU DID COMPETE WITH MICROSOFT, YOU

        18  DIDN'T LOOK TO DO THAT.  AND INDEED, YOU LOOKED TO DO THE

        19  OPPOSITE.  YOU LOOKED TO FIND SEGMENTS WHERE YOU COULD

        20  OPERATE WITHOUT BEING STEPPED ON BY MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

        21  A.   WE LOOKED TO FIND--

        22  Q.   RIGHT?

        23  A.   NO, SIR.  WE LOOKED TO FIND SEGMENTS WHERE WE COULD

        24  BE SUCCESSFUL.

        25  Q.   OKAY.  IF YOU SAY "NO," SIR, LET'S LOOK AT GOVERNMENT
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         1  EXHIBIT 2293.

         2  A.   CAN I FINISH MY ANSWER?

         3           THE WITNESS:  IS IT ALL RIGHT IF I FINISH?

         4           THE COURT:  SURE.

         5  BY MR. HOLLEY:

         6  Q.   I THOUGHT YOU HAD.

         7  A.   WE LOOKED FOR AREAS WHERE WE COULD BE SUCCESSFUL.  AN

         8  OBVIOUS CRITERIA IN SUCCESS IS WHO ELSE IS IN THE MARKET.

         9  SO, AS PART OF THAT, WE WOULDN'T GET OURSELVES IN THE

        10  OPERATING SYSTEM BUSINESS, BECAUSE WE DON'T THINK THAT'S A

        11  BUSINESS WE WOULD HAVE BEEN SUCCESSFUL IN.  IN THE JAVA

        12  TOOLS DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS, WE WENT IN THERE FULL-KNOWING

        13  THAT WE WOULD COMPETE HEAD-TO-HEAD WITH SUN AND MICROSOFT.

        14  WE FELT WE COULD BE COMPETITIVE AND ADD VALUE, AND WE WERE

        15  SUCCESSFUL.

        16  Q.   HAVE YOU NOW FINISHED?

        17  A.   YES, THANK YOU.

        18  Q.   I WOULD NOW ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        19  2293, WHICH PURPORTS TO BE AN INTERVIEW WITH YOU THAT WAS

        20  PUBLISHED IN THE NEW YORK TIMES ON MAY 9TH, 1993, WHICH I

        21  WOULD OFFER.

        22           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, MAY WE APPROACH THE

        23  BENCH?

        24           THE COURT:  SURE.

        25           (BENCH CONFERENCE.)

                                                           34

         1           MR. HOLLEY:  THIS ARTICLE RELATES TO AN INCIDENT

         2  IN WHICH BORLAND ENCOURAGED A DISTRICT ATTORNEY IN

         3  CALIFORNIA TO INDICT MR. EUBANKS.  THAT INDICTMENT WAS

         4  DISMISSED AFTER THE CALIFORNIA SUPREME COURT CRITICIZED

         5  THE DISTRICT INTO ACCEPTING MONEY FROM A SYMANTEC

         6  COMPETITOR TO ENGAGE IN PROSECUTION.  I THINK THAT THIS IS

         7  NOTHING BUT AN EFFORT TO EMBARRASS THIS WITNESS, IN LIGHT

         8  OF THE FACT THAT THE INDICTMENT WAS DISMISSED.  I SEE NO

         9  PROBATIVE VALUE OF GOING INTO THIS SUBJECT MATTER.

        10           MR. BOIES:  I THINK THAT MR. HOLLEY DOES NOT

        11  ACCURATELY OR FULLY STATE THE CIRCUMSTANCES.  HOWEVER, FOR

        12  MY PURPOSES, I AM PREPARED TO LIMIT MY OFFER TO THE

        13  INTERVIEW QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS THAT APPEAR ON PAGE THREE,

        14  IN WHICH THE WITNESS SAYS SOMETHING OR IS REPORTED TO HAVE

        15  SAID SOMETHING THAT IS QUITE AT VARIANCE WITH WHAT THE

        16  WITNESS JUST TESTIFIED.  THAT IS THE PURPOSE FOR OFFERING

        17  THIS EXHIBIT.

        18           AND I AM HAPPY TO OFFER IT LIMITED TO PAGE THREE.

        19           MR. HOLLEY:  THE QUESTION CAN BE ASKED WITHOUT

        20  HAVING THIS DOCUMENT IN EVIDENCE.  WE COULD HAVE A

        21  REDACTED VERSION OF IT.

        22           MR. BOIES:  THIS IS SOMETHING ON THE PUBLIC

        23  RECORD.  THIS WAS PUBLISHED IN THE NEW YORK TIMES.  I

        24  MEAN, IT'S NOT LIKE WE ARE BRINGING UP SOMETHING THAT IS

        25  CONFIDENTIAL.
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         1           THE COURT:  IT'S A NONJURY TRIAL, SO PUT IT IN

         2  CONTEXT.

         3           MR. BOIES:  ALL I'M GOING TO DO IS USE THE THIRD

         4  PAGE, AND I'M HAPPY TO LIMIT THE OFFER TO THE THIRD PAGE,

         5  IF THAT WILL MOVE THINGS ALONG.

         6           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  LET ME SEE IF I GOT THIS

         7  RIGHT.  I'M GOING TO TAKE A BRIEF RECESS TO READ THIS

         8  THING ALL THE WAY THROUGH.  YOU ARE REPRESENTING TO ME

         9  THAT AT THE TIME THAT THIS INTERVIEW WAS GIVEN,

        10  MR. EUBANKS, HIMSELF, WAS UNDER INDICTMENT?

        11           MR. BOIES:  HE WAS.

        12           MR. HOLLEY:  HE WAS.

        13           THE COURT:  AND THE INDICTMENT HAS SINCE BEEN

        14  DISMISSED?

        15           MR. BOIES:  THAT IS ALSO CORRECT.

        16           MR. HOLLEY:  YES.

        17           THE COURT:  I WILL ACCEPT THAT AS BEING THE CASE,

        18  SO IT DOES NOT REFLECT ADVERSELY ON HIM.

        19           NOW, THAT BEING THE CASE, WHAT IS THE

        20  OBJECTIONABLE--

        21           MR. HOLLEY:  I RAISED THE OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR,

        22  BECAUSE AT THE TIME I MADE IT, I DID NOT UNDERSTAND

        23  MR. BOIES WAS INTENDING TO FOCUS ON THE STATEMENT ON PAGE

        24  THREE.  IN LIGHT OF HIS OFFER TO ADMIT THAT PORTION OF THE

        25  DOCUMENT, THEN--
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         1           THE COURT:  YOU WITHDRAW YOUR OBJECTION?

         2           MR. HOLLEY:  YES.

         3           THE COURT:  THEN I DON'T NEED TO READ IT?

         4           MR. BOIES:  RIGHT.

         5           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         6           MR. BOIES:  AND I COULD FINISH WITH THIS

         7  DOCUMENT.

         8           THE COURT:  THAT'S FINE.

         9           (END OF BENCH CONFERENCE.)

        10           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT 2293, PAGE

        11  THREE, HAVING BEEN LIMITED TO PAGE THREE OF THE EXHIBIT,

        12  IS ADMITTED.

        13                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2293 WAS

        14                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        15  BY MR. BOIES:

        16  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION, MR. EUBANKS, TO THE

        17  QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ON PAGE THREE OF THIS EXHIBIT.  I'M

        18  PARTICULARLY INTERESTED IN THE NEXT-TO-LAST PARAGRAPH,

        19  WHEN YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT WHETHER OR NOT YOU WANT TO

        20  COMPETE WITH MICROSOFT.  AND YOU SAY, QUOTE, WE CERTAINLY

        21  DO COMPETE, BUT WE DON'T LOOK TO DO THAT.  WE LOOK FOR

        22  SEGMENTS WHERE WE CAN BE OUT FROM UNDER THEIR FEET.

        23           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        24  A.   YES, I DO.

        25  Q.   DID YOU TELL THAT TO THE NEW YORK TIMES REPORTER ON
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         1  MAY 9TH, 1993?

         2  A.   I WOULD BELIEVE I DID.  THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS IN THE

         3  ARTICLE.  I BELIEVE I SAID THAT.

         4           I MEAN, THE WHOLE PARAGRAPH OF WHAT I SAID IS HOW

         5  WE'RE NOT GOING OUT OF OUR WAY TO GO HEAD-TO-HEAD WITH

         6  MICROSOFT JUST FOR THE PLEASURE.  WE FIND WAYS TO WORK

         7  WITH THEM, MUCH LIKE WE FIND WAYS TO WORK AGAINST THEM.

         8  WE CERTAINLY COMPETE, BUT WE DON'T GO OUT OF OUR WAY TO

         9  MAKE THAT A MAINSTREAM PART OF OUR BUSINESS, ABSOLUTELY

        10  CONSISTENT WITH WHAT I SAID EARLIER.

        11  Q.   AND AGAIN, JUST SO WE ARE CLEAR, SIR, DO I COULD THAT

        12  WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS WHEN YOU SAID WE CERTAINLY DO

        13  COMPETE, BUT WE DON'T LOOK TO DO THAT, WE LOOK FOR

        14  SEGMENTS WHERE WE COULD BE OUT FROM UNDER THEIR FEET, WHAT

        15  YOU MEANT WAS WHAT YOU JUST SAID?

        16  A.   YES.

        17  Q.   LET ME TURN TO THE COMMUNICATIONS THAT BROUGHT YOU

        18  HERE.

        19           THERE CAME A TIME WHEN MR. GATES CALLED YOU AND

        20  PERSONALLY ASKED YOU IF YOU WOULD TESTIFY; IS THAT

        21  CORRECT, SIR?

        22  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        23  Q.   AND AT THAT TIME, DID HE SAY WHY HE WANTED TO HAVE

        24  YOU TESTIFY?

        25  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER, AS I THINK I SAID IN MY DEPOSITION,
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         1  THE DETAILS OF THE CONVERSATION.  WHAT I REMEMBER THE GIST

         2  OF IT WAS, WAS THAT HE WANTED SOMEONE WITH LOTS OF

         3  EXPERIENCE IN THE INDUSTRY TO TALK ABOUT THE BROAD TRENDS

         4  AND WHAT'S HAPPENED IN THE INDUSTRY OVER 25 YEARS TO HELP

         5  PUT IT IN PERSPECTIVE.

         6  Q.   NOW, YOU MENTIONED A MR. WILL HURST IN YOUR DIRECT

         7  TESTIMONY.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?

         8  A.   YES.

         9  Q.   AND DID YOU HAVE A CONVERSATION WITH MR. WILL HURST

        10  IN WHICH YOU REPORTED TO MR. HURST WHAT MR. GATES HAD TOLD

        11  YOU?

        12  A.   WILL IS ON OUR BOARD, AND I THOUGHT IT WAS MY

        13  RESPONSIBILITY TO LET THE BOARD MEMBER KNOW THAT I HAD

        14  BEEN ASKED TO TESTIFY.  I ASKED HIS ADVICE, AND ALSO MADE

        15  IT CLEAR TO HIM I WOULD MAKE UP MY OWN DECISION ON THIS.

        16  Q.   NOW, MY QUESTION IS WHETHER, IN ADDITION TO ASKING

        17  HIS ADVICE, YOU TOLD MR. HURST ANYTHING THAT MR. GATES HAD

        18  TOLD YOU IN THE CONVERSATION.

        19  A.   NOT THAT I REMEMBER.  I DON'T REMEMBER THE

        20  CONVERSATION WITH WILL ABOUT IT, OTHER THAN I GAVE HIM A

        21  CALL AND TOLD HIM, OR MAYBE I TOLD HIM IN PERSON.  I DON'T

        22  REMEMBER, ACTUALLY, WHICH IT WAS.

        23  Q.   YOU DIDN'T MAKE ANY NOTES OR RECORD OF YOUR

        24  CONVERSATION WITH MR. GATES?

        25  A.   NOT THAT--NO.
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         1  Q.   DID MR. GATES MAKE ANY COMMENTS TO YOU IN THE COURSE

         2  OF HIS TELEPHONE CONVERSATION ABOUT THIS TRIAL OR THE

         3  SUBSTANCE OF IT OR HOW IT WAS GOING?

         4  A.   NO.  I THINK HE SAID IT WAS COMING TO A CLOSE, AND I

         5  WOULD BE ONE OF THE LAST WITNESSES, BUT IT WAS A VERY

         6  SHORT CONVERSATION.

         7  Q.   OTHER THAN SAYING THAT YOU WERE GOING TO BE ONE OF

         8  THE LAST WITNESSES AND WAS COMING TO THE CLOSE, DID HE

         9  TELL YOU ANYTHING ABOUT THE SUBSTANCE OF THE TRIAL OR HOW

        10  IT WAS GOING, SIR?

        11  A.   NO.  I DON'T REMEMBER ANY CONVERSATION WITH BILL

        12  ABOUT THE SUBSTANCE OF THE TRIAL.

        13  Q.   DO YOU REMEMBER ANY CONVERSATION WITH MR. GATES ABOUT

        14  HOW THE TRIAL WAS GOING, SINCE YOU DRAW A DISTINCTION

        15  THERE?

        16  A.   NO, I DO NOT RECALL ANY CONVERSATION OF THAT NATURE.

        17  Q.   DID YOU TELL MR. HURST ANYTHING ABOUT THAT?

        18  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER THE CONVERSATION WITH WILL, OTHER

        19  THAN I KNOW I CALLED HIM AND TOLD HIM, OR TALKED TO HIM IN

        20  PERSON AND TOLD HIM, AND... YOU KNOW, THAT THAT'S--THAT'S

        21  THE EXTENT OF MY MEMORY ON WILL, THE CONVERSATION WITH

        22  WILL.

        23  Q.   NOW, THIS WAS NOT THE FIRST TIME THAT MICROSOFT HAD

        24  CALLED AND ASKED YOU TO HELP OUT IN ITS LITIGATION EFFORT;

        25  CORRECT, SIR?
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         1  A.   THIS IS THE FIRST TIME THEY ASKED ME TO PARTICIPATE

         2  IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING.

         3  Q.   YES.  THIS IS THE FIRST TIME THEY HAD ASKED YOU TO

         4  ACTUALLY BE A WITNESS, BUT THEY ASKED YOU TO HELP OUT IN

         5  OTHER WAYS PRIOR; CORRECT, SIR?

         6  A.   IN A COURT CASE?

         7  Q.   WELL, FOR EXAMPLE--

         8  A.   THEY ASKED ME TO WRITE--IF I WOULD BE WILLING TO

         9  EXPRESS AN OP-ED PIECE ON THE OPINIONS OF THE INDUSTRY.

        10  YES, THEY DID.  I'M SORRY, YES, THEY DID ASK ME TO DO

        11  THAT.

        12  Q.   AND YOU AGREED TO DO THAT, SIR?

        13  A.   YES.

        14  Q.   AND, INDEED, MICROSOFT ACTUALLY PREPARED THE FIRST

        15  DRAFT OF THAT OP-ED PIECE FOR YOU, DIDN'T THEY, SIR?

        16  A.   I DON'T RECALL THAT.  I DON'T RECALL THAT, BUT I

        17  DON'T DRAFT OP-ED PIECES.  OUR COMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT

        18  DOES.  IT'S POSSIBLE THAT MICROSOFT GAVE THEM SOME INPUT

        19  ON IT.  I DON'T REMEMBER.

        20  Q.   LET ME TRY TO DISTINGUISH BETWEEN YOUR PR DEPARTMENT

        21  THAT WORKS FOR YOU DRAFTING SOMETHING AND MICROSOFT

        22  DRAFTING SOMETHING.

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   WHAT I'M ASKING YOU ABOUT IS:  DID MICROSOFT PREPARE

        25  THE FIRST DRAFT OF YOUR OP-ED PIECE?
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         1  A.   AND I SAID I DON'T REMEMBER THAT BEING THE CASE.

         2  IT'S POSSIBLE THAT THEY PROVIDED INITIAL INPUT ON WHAT

         3  THEY THOUGHT WOULD BE GOOD POINTS TO MAKE TO OUR PR

         4  DEPARTMENT OR VICE VERSA.  BUT I DON'T REMEMBER THAT.

         5  Q.   DID YOU EVER TRY TO FIND OUT WHAT THE SOURCE WAS OF

         6  THE DRAFT THAT YOU GOT AND THEN MARKED UP?

         7  A.   NO, I HONESTLY DIDN'T SPEND TIME TRYING TO UNDERSTAND

         8  IT.  WHAT I DID DO WAS BE SURE THAT WHAT I FINALLY SAID

         9  THAT HAD MY NAME ON IT WAS SOMETHING THAT I WOULD AGREE

        10  WITH.

        11  Q.   YES.  YOU WANTED TO BE SURE THAT YOU AGREED WITH WHAT

        12  WAS BEING PUT OUT OVER OR UNDER YOUR NAME.

        13           BUT IN THAT CONNECTION, DID YOU TRY TO FIND OUT

        14  WHETHER WHAT WAS BEING PRESENTED TO YOU WAS SOMETHING THAT

        15  MICROSOFT DRAFTED?

        16  A.   I DON'T RECALL THAT.  I DON'T THINK I WOULD BE REALLY

        17  THAT CONCERNED WHERE THE INPUT CAME FROM, THE IDEAS.

        18  Q.   THAT IS, IF THE FIRST DRAFT HAD COME FROM MICROSOFT,

        19  THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN FINE WITH YOU; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE

        20  SAYING?

        21  A.   CERTAINLY IN THIS CONTEXT, IT SOUNDS WORSE THAN IT

        22  IS, BUT YES.  I THINK THE ISSUE IS THAT IF I'M GOING TO DO

        23  AN OP-ED PIECE FOR THE NEW YORK TIMES, I'M GOING TO REALLY

        24  SEE THAT IS SAYS WHAT I BELIEVE TO BE TRUE ABOUT THE

        25  INDUSTRY.
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         1  Q.   ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU WANTED TO GET OUT OF

         2  AGREEING TO DO THIS OP-ED PIECE THAT MICROSOFT ASKED TO

         3  YOU DO WAS TO SEE IF YOU COULD GET MICROSOFT TO HELP YOU

         4  IN CONNECTION WITH SOME BUSINESS CONCERNS; CORRECT, SIR?

         5  A.   NO, SIR.

         6           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD ASK THAT THE

         7  WITNESS BE HANDED, AND I WOULD OFFER AT THIS TIME,

         8  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 729.

         9           I'M ALSO GOING TO OFFER AT THE SAME TIME

        10  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 729-A, WHICH IS EXACTLY THE SAME

        11  DOCUMENT, EXCEPT IT HAS, AT MICROSOFT COUNSEL'S REQUEST, A

        12  SMALL PORTION BLOCKED OUT, WHICH IS THE DOLLAR AMOUNT OF

        13  THE FEBRUARY 23, 1998, PROJECTED PROJECTIONS FOR

        14  WINDOWS 98 PLUS BUSINESS IN THE UNITED STATES.

        15           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, ON THE UNDERSTANDING

        16  THAT 729 WILL BE ACCEPTED UNDER SEAL AND 729-A WOULD BE IN

        17  THE PUBLIC DOMAIN, I WOULD HAVE NO OBJECTION.

        18           MR. BOIES:  IF THE COURT LOOKS ON THE FIRST PAGE

        19  OF 729, THE BOTTOM E-MAIL, THE SECOND PARAGRAPH BEGINS,

        20  "PLUS, FOR WIN 98," EXCLAMATION POINT, "IS PROJECTED TO

        21  BE," AND THEN THERE IS AN AMOUNT.

        22           THE COURT:  I SEE IT.

        23           MR. BOIES:  THAT IS THE AMOUNT THAT HAS BEEN

        24  BLOCKED OUT OF 729-A.

        25           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  FOR THE TIME BEING, I

                                                           43

         1  WILL LET 729 BE FILED UNDER SEAL.  729-A WILL BE FILED

         2  WITH THE CLERK.

         3                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NOS. 729 AND

         4                          729-A WERE ADMITTED INTO

         5                          EVIDENCE.)

         6  BY MR. BOIES:

         7  Q.   TO BEGIN WITH, MR. EUBANKS, IF YOU GO TO THE END OF

         8  THE E-MAIL STRING THAT IS THE THIRD PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT,

         9  DO YOU HAVE AN E-MAIL FROM MR. BRAD CHASE OF MICROSOFT TO

        10  YOU, ASKING YOU TO CONSIDER PREPARING AN OP-ED PIECE?

        11  A.   YES.

        12  Q.   AND THEN IF WE GO TO THE SECOND PAGE AND THE BOTTOM

        13  E-MAIL ON THE SECOND PAGE, WE HAVE YOUR REPLY TO

        14  MR. CHASE; CORRECT?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   AND IN THE FIRST PARAGRAPH OF THIS REPLY, YOU SAY YOU

        17  WOULD BE HAPPY TO CONSIDER PREPARING AN OP-ED PIECE;

        18  CORRECT?

        19  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        20  Q.   AND THEN IN THE SECOND PARAGRAPH YOU SAY, QUOTE, I

        21  TALKED TO PAUL MARITZ RECENTLY ABOUT SOMETHING THAT IS

        22  REALLY CONCERNING US:  THE INCLUSION OF A COMPETITOR'S

        23  ANTI-VIRUS PRODUCT IN THE PLUSPACK.  THIS MAKES NO SENSE

        24  TO ME.  WHY FAVOR ONE COMPANY OVER ANOTHER?  AND THEN YOU

        25  GO ON.
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         2  A.   YES.

         3  Q.   NOW, DOES THIS REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT WHEN

         4  YOU REPLIED IN CONNECTION WITH THE REQUEST THAT YOU

         5  PREPARE AN OP-ED PIECE, ONE OF THE THINGS YOU DID WAS

         6  REQUEST MICROSOFT TO HELP YOU ON SOMETHING THAT WAS

         7  IMPORTANT TO YOUR BUSINESS?

         8  A.   WHAT IT REFRESHES MY MEMORY ON IS THE FOLLOWING:

         9  THAT BRAD--I HAD ALREADY BEEN IN DISCUSSIONS WITH PAUL

        10  MARITZ AND BROUGHT THIS UP, AND HE AND I DISCUSSED THE

        11  ISSUE OF THE PLUSPACK.  BRAD HAD SENT ME AN E-MAIL

        12  SUBSEQUENT TO MY DISCUSSIONS WITH PAUL MARITZ, SUBSEQUENT

        13  TO BRINGING UP THE PLUSPACK ISSUE, AND TOLD ME ABOUT HIS

        14  NEW JOB, AND ASKED ME IF I WOULD BE INTERESTED IN DOING AN

        15  OP-ED PIECE.  I SIGNED THE OP-ED PIECE IN THIS E-MAIL TO

        16  AN EMPLOYEE OF SYMANTEC, AMY SAVAGE, AND ASKED HER TO TAKE

        17  THIS FOR ACTION.  AND IN THIS E-MAIL, BRAD LINKS SOMEONE

        18  UP WITH AMY.  I TAKE THIS TIME TO, INDEPENDENTLY OF THAT,

        19  BRING BRAD UP TO SPEED ON THE ISSUES WITH PAUL MARITZ ON A

        20  SEPARATE ISSUE ABOUT THE IDEA OF PUTTING INDEPENDENT

        21  SOFTWARE VENDOR PRODUCTS IN MARKETING PROGRAMS SUCH AS THE

        22  PLUSPACK, AND WE HAD AN ONGOING DISCUSSION ABOUT THAT

        23  AFTER THAT ISSUE.

        24           THE TWO THINGS WERE TOTALLY UNLINKED, AND THE

        25  PLUSPACK ISSUE STARTED BEFORE I EVEN KNEW THAT BRAD WOULD
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         1  BE INTERESTED IN POTENTIALLY HAVING ME DO AN OP-ED PIECE.

         2  Q.   OH, I ACCEPT ENTIRELY THAT THE PLUSPACK ISSUE STARTED

         3  BEFORE THAT.  AND, IN FACT, YOU SAY IT IS IN THE E-MAIL.

         4  A.   THANK YOU.

         5  Q.   YOU SAID YOU TALKED TO PAUL MARITZ BEFORE.  BUT ARE

         6  YOU TESTIFYING THAT YOUR RAISING THIS IN CONNECTION WITH

         7  AGREEING TO DO THE OP-ED PIECE WAS JUST--I HESITATE TO SAY

         8  THE WORD--"COINCIDENTAL"?

         9  A.   THAT'S AN EXCELLENT CHOICE OF WORDS.  I AGREE WITH

        10  THAT.

        11           AND THE REASON, THOUGH, THAT IT OCCURRED HERE IS

        12  BECAUSE BRAD IS TELLING ME THAT HE HAS THIS NEW JOB IN THE

        13  MARKETING AREA, AND HE HAS JUST BEEN PUT BACK IN, AS YOU

        14  PROBABLY WELL KNOW, INTO THIS JOB IN THE WINDOWS AREA.

        15  AND HE AND I HAD A LONG, ONGOING RELATIONSHIP OVER MANY

        16  YEARS WORKING TOGETHER WITH MICROSOFT, AND I TOOK THIS

        17  OPPORTUNITY TO BRING THIS TO HIM, SINCE HE NOW HAD THIS

        18  JOB BECAUSE I FELT IT WOULD BE MORE PRODUCTIVE TO WORK

        19  WITH BRAD ON IT THAN PAUL MARITZ.

        20           BUT THIS ISSUE WAS IN MOTION ABOUT THE PLUSPACK,

        21  AND HAS STAYED IN MOTION REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT THEY

        22  WANT AN OP-ED PIECE.  AND THERE IS NOTHING IN ANY OF THESE

        23  DOCUMENTS THAT SAID THE TWO THINGS WERE TIED TOGETHER, AND

        24  THERE IS NO QUID PRO QUO.  AND THE PROOF IS I DID THE

        25  OP-ED PIECE, AND WE DIDN'T GET WHAT WE THOUGHT THEY SHOULD
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         1  DO ON THE PLUSPACK.

         2  Q.   WELL, SIR, INTERESTING THAT YOU SHOULD SAY THAT,

         3  BECAUSE WHAT THEY TOLD YOU WAS THAT IT WAS TOO LATE TO

         4  HELP YOU WITH THE PLUSPACK, BUT THAT THEY WOULD DO

         5  SOMETHING THAT WAS EVEN BETTER FOR YOU; CORRECT, SIR?

         6  A.   WELL, I DON'T KNOW THAT--DO YOU WANT TO POINT ME TO

         7  THAT?

         8  Q.   LET'S SEE IF YOU FIRST REMEMBER IT.

         9  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER SAYING THAT.  I REMEMBER THEM FIRST

        10  SAYING, LISTEN, WE DO SOMETHING WITH ONE VENDOR AND THEN

        11  WE DO IT WITH ANOTHER.

        12           THE WHOLE POINT OF THIS IS THAT I WAS TRYING TO

        13  CONVINCE MICROSOFT THAT--TO STOP THAT, JUST DON'T DO IT

        14  WITH ANY OF US AND LET US COMPETE, BECAUSE OUR PEOPLE

        15  WANTED ME TO GO UP AND NOW GET SOMETHING EQUIVALENT FOR

        16  SYMANTEC, AND THEN SOMEONE ELSE GOES AND GETS SOMETHING

        17  EQUIVALENT.  AND I HAD A PERSONAL OPINION THAT WE WOULD BE

        18  BETTER OFF IF WE DIDN'T DO THAT.  MICROSOFT DIDN'T HAPPEN

        19  TO AGREE WITH THAT POSITION, AND IT GOT DROPPED, AND THERE

        20  WERE NO FURTHER DISCUSSIONS AFTER--AT SOME POINT THE

        21  DISCUSSIONS STOPPED ON THIS ISSUE.

        22           BUT ABSOLUTELY, MICROSOFT WOULD--TRIED VERY HARD

        23  TO BE FAIR, IF THEY DID SOMETHING THAT SUPPORTED ONE OF

        24  OUR COMPETITORS--IN THIS CASE, MCAFEE--THEY WOULD BE

        25  WILLING TO DO SOMETHING ELSE TO SUPPORT US.  AND I FOUND
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         1  FOR THE RETURN ON THESE KIND OF MARKETING PROGRAMS, THE

         2  ENERGY TO DO THEM WASN'T A GOOD RETURN ON INVESTMENT,

         3  WASN'T A GOOD BUSINESS PROPOSITION, AND THAT POINT WAS

         4  EXPRESSED TO PAUL MARITZ, TO BRAD, AND PROBABLY OTHERS, IF

         5  I HAD A CHANCE TO TALK TO THEM ABOUT IT.

         6  Q.   THE POINT OF VIEW THAT YOU EXPRESSED TO MR. CHASE WAS

         7  THAT INCLUDING ONE COMPETITOR'S PRODUCT IN THE PLUSPACK

         8  BUNDLE, WOULD ANOINT THAT PARTICULAR PRODUCT; CORRECT,

         9  SIR?  THAT WAS YOUR LANGUAGE.

        10  A.   YES, IT WAS.

        11  Q.   AND YOU BELIEVED THAT THIS WOULD ADVANTAGE YOUR

        12  COMPETITOR BECAUSE IT WOULD BE AN ENDORSEMENT AND BECAUSE

        13  IT WOULD INCREASE THE PRODUCTS'S DISTRIBUTION; CORRECT,

        14  SIR?

        15  A.   WELL, I THINK THAT'S A PART OF WHAT IT WAS.  THE

        16  BIGGER PART OF IT IS THAT THEN MICROSOFT WOULD DO

        17  SOMETHING FOR US, AND THEN THEY DO SOMETHING FOR SOMEONE

        18  ELSE.

        19  Q.   HAVE YOU FINISHED?

        20  A.   SORRY?

        21  Q.   YOU HAVE YOU FINISHED YOUR ANSWER?

        22  A.   YES.

        23  Q.   THIS PROCESS OF INCLUDING THINGS IN DIDN'T JUST START

        24  HERE.  YOU HAD BEEN ASKING MICROSOFT TO INCLUDE VARIOUS

        25  PRODUCTS OF YOURS IN THE BUNDLE EARLIER; CORRECT, SIR?
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         1  A.   I'M SORRY, IN WHAT BUNDLE?

         2  Q.   THE OPERATING SYSTEM.

         3  A.   THE PLUSPACK OR THE OPERATING SYSTEM?

         4  Q.   THE OPERATING SYSTEM.

         5  A.   I THINK OUR POSITION WITH MICROSOFT HAS ALWAYS BEEN

         6  THAT IF THEY WANTED TO INCLUDE UTILITIES, YOU KNOW, WE

         7  WOULD NEGOTIATE WITH THEM ON PROVIDING TECHNOLOGY, AND WE

         8  DID THAT OVER MANY--DID THAT A FEW TIMES OVER A MANY-YEAR

         9  PERIOD.

        10  Q.   SIR, YOU TRIED TO GET MICROSOFT, TRIED TO CONVINCE

        11  MICROSOFT, TO INCLUDE YOUR WINFAX PRODUCT; CORRECT?

        12  A.   WELL, THEY DID INCLUDE OUR WINFAX.

        13  Q.   YES, YOU SUCCESSFULLY TRIED--

        14  A.   NOT ME PERSONALLY, BUT YES--

        15  Q.   THE COMPANY--

        16  A.   THE COMPANY, SYMANTEC, DID THAT, YES.

        17  Q.   THE COMPANY SET OUT TO GET MICROSOFT TO INCLUDE

        18  WINFAX WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM, AND YOU DID IT BECAUSE

        19  YOU BELIEVED THAT IT WOULD INCREASE YOUR DISTRIBUTION, AND

        20  IT WOULD ANOINT YOUR PRODUCT; CORRECT?

        21  A.   NO.  ACTUALLY WHAT HAPPENED WAS THAT MICROSOFT WANTED

        22  TO HAVE SOME FAX CAPABILITY, SO THEY CAME TO US, AND WE

        23  NEGOTIATED TO INCLUDE A PORTION OF OUR FAX PRODUCT.  THE

        24  BIGGEST MOTIVATION FOR THAT PARTICULAR BUSINESS DEAL WAS

        25  NOT SO MUCH DISTRIBUTION AS IT WAS UPGRADE OPPORTUNITIES
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         1  OF PEOPLE WHO USED THE FAX THAT WAS INCLUDED THERE.  THAT

         2  WAS THE ACTUAL MOTIVATION, AS I REMEMBER THE BACKGROUND IN

         3  THIS.  I DIDN'T NEGOTIATE THIS.  I WASN'T REALLY THAT

         4  INVOLVED IN IT.

         5  Q.   YOU DO KNOW, THOUGH, THAT FIRST SYMANTEC TRIED TO

         6  CONVINCE, AND SUCCESSFULLY CONVINCED, MICROSOFT TO INCLUDE

         7  WINFAX; CORRECT?

         8  A.   NO, NO, SIR.  MICROSOFT HAD MADE A DECISION--MY

         9  UNDERSTANDING OF THIS, AND MAYBE IF THERE IS A DOCUMENT

        10  THAT WOULD CLARIFY THIS, BUT MY UNDERSTANDING OF THIS IS

        11  WHAT HAPPENED IS MICROSOFT DECIDED THEY WANTED TO INCLUDE

        12  SOME FAX CAPABILITY, AND CAME TO US.  AND THEREFORE, WE

        13  NEGOTIATED TO PROVIDE SOME OF THAT FAX CAPABILITY, ON THE

        14  LOGIC THAT IF THEY'RE GOING TO INCLUDE IT, IT WOULD BE

        15  BETTER FOR IT TO BE FROM US THAN FROM SOMEONE ELSE.  I

        16  THINK THAT'S LOGICAL AND EASY TO UNDERSTAND.  OUR POSITION

        17  CONSISTENTLY ON THIS STUFF HAS BEEN THAT IF THEY WANT TO

        18  TALK ABOUT DOING THAT, WE WILL LOOK AND SEE IF THERE WAS A

        19  MUTUALLY BENEFICIAL BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY.  IN THE CASE OF

        20  FAX, THERE WAS.  IN CASE OF THE PLUSPACK, THEY DID

        21  BUSINESS WITH MCAFEE.  THEY HAVE DONE BUSINESS WITH A

        22  NUMBER OF PEOPLE OVER THE YEARS.

        23  Q.   LET ME SEE IF I CAN GET AGREEMENT ON ONE THING, AND

        24  THAT IS THAT THE INCLUSION OF THE SYMANTEC FAX PRODUCT IN

        25  WINDOWS 98 BENEFITED SYMANTEC, IN YOUR VIEW, YOUR PERSONAL
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         1  VIEW, FOR EXACTLY THE SAME REASONS THAT INCLUSION OF THE

         2  MCAFEE PRODUCT IN THE PLUSPACK BENEFITED MCAFEE; CORRECT?

         3  A.   NO, YOU'RE ACTUALLY ASKING A DIFFERENT QUESTION.

         4           THE WITNESS:  I THINK THIS IS MAYBE GERMANE TO

         5  THIS WHOLE THING, YOUR HONOR, IS THAT THERE IS ONE THING

         6  WE THOUGHT GOING IN.  THERE'S ANOTHER THING ABOUT WHAT WE

         7  LEARNED GOING OUT.  SO, YOUR QUESTION ABOUT DID IT

         8  BENEFIT, MY FEELING IS IT HAD MARGINAL BENEFIT TO ANY OF

         9  US.  THAT'S WHAT I ACTUALLY THINK THE END RESULT WAS.  I

        10  DON'T THINK THE PLUSPACK HELPED MCAFEE, HURT US MUCH.  AND

        11  I DON'T THINK HAVING THE SMALL PIECE OF WINFAX IN THERE

        12  HELPED OR HURT US MUCH AT ALL.  I THINK THAT'S THE END

        13  RESULT THAT I'VE LEARNED OUT OF THIS WHOLE THING.

        14           SO, THERE IS A DIFFERENCE BETWEEN GOING IN WHAT

        15  BUSINESS DEAL WE LOOKED TO DO, AND WHAT I THINK THE END

        16  RESULT GOING OUT OF THIS WAS.

        17  Q.   WHEN DID YOU REACH THE CONCLUSION THAT INCLUSION OF

        18  THE SYMANTEC FAX PRODUCT HADN'T ACTUALLY HELPED SYMANTEC?

        19  A.   I THINK THAT OVER THE LAST, YOU KNOW, LAST SIX MONTHS

        20  OR SO, IN JUST LOOKING AT DATA, IT'S HARD TO DETERMINE

        21  WHETHER THERE IS SOME EVIDENCE THAT IT ACTUALLY HELPED.  I

        22  MEAN, IT'S DIFFICULT BECAUSE THERE IS (SIC) SO MANY

        23  DIFFERENT FACTORS.  THERE IS ALL THE RETAIL DISTRIBUTION,

        24  PROMOTION AND STUFF, BUT I DON'T THINK THERE IS EVIDENCE

        25  THAT WOULD REALLY SAY IT'S HAD MUCH OF AN EFFECT ON THE
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         1  FAX BUSINESS, ONE WAY OR THE OTHER.

         2  Q.   IS THIS SOMETHING THAT YOU CONCLUDED AFTER YOUR

         3  DEPOSITION THAT I TOOK OF YOU?

         4  A.   NO.

         5           MR. BOIES:  MAY I ASK THE WITNESS BE SHOWN HIS

         6  DEPOSITION.  AND I'M PARTICULARLY GOING TO DIRECT THE

         7  WITNESS TO PAGE 90 OF HIS DEPOSITION.  AND THE PORTION I'M

         8  PARTICULARLY INTERESTED IN BEGINS AT LINE 18.

         9           THE COURT:  THIS WAS A DEPOSITION TAKEN ABOUT TWO

        10  WEEKS AGO; IS THAT RIGHT?

        11           MR. BOIES:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  ON MAY 28TH, 1999,

        12  (READING):

        13                "QUESTION:  WITH RESPECT TO THE INCLUSION OF

        14           THE SYMANTEC FAX PRODUCT IN WINDOWS 98 THAT WE

        15           TALKED ABOUT BEFORE--

        16                ANSWER:  YES.

        17                QUESTION:  --DID THAT INCLUSION HELP

        18           SYMANTEC?

        19                ANSWER:  YES.

        20                QUESTION:  WHY?

        21                ANSWER:  FOR THE SAME REASONS THAT MCAFEE

        22           WAS HELPED WITH WINDOWS WITH THE PLUSPACK."

        23  BY MR. BOIES:

        24  Q.   DO YOU RECALL BEING ASKED THOSE QUESTIONS AND GIVING

        25  THOSE ANSWERS, SIR?
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         1  A.   YES.

         2           I THINK THE DEGREE OF HELP IS WHAT WE ARE TALKING

         3  ABOUT HERE.  WHAT I ELABORATED ON HERE IS AT THE END OF

         4  THE DAY IT'S NOT MUCH HELP.  HELP THEM OUT EQUALLY.

         5           MR. BOIES:  IS THIS A CONVENIENT TIME FOR A

         6  BREAK, YOUR HONOR?

         7           THE COURT:  I THINK SO.

         8           (BRIEF RECESS.)

         9  BY MR. BOIES:

        10  Q.   MR. EUBANKS, LET ME JUST CLEAR UP A COUPLE OF THINGS

        11  LEFT OVER FROM THE PERIOD RIGHT BEFORE THE RECESS.

        12           WE TALKED ABOUT WHAT HAPPENED WITH THE PLUSPACK

        13  ISSUE, AND IN THAT CONNECTION, I WOULD ASK THAT THE

        14  WITNESS BE HANDED, AND I WOULD OFFER, GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        15  2269.

        16           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

        17           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 2269 IS ADMITTED.

        18                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2269 WAS

        19                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        20  BY MR. BOIES:

        21  Q.   NOW, MR. EUBANKS, IN ADDITION TO THE OP-ED PIECE THAT

        22  YOU WERE ASKED TO PREPARE, YOU WERE ALSO ASKED ON A NUMBER

        23  OF OCCASIONS BY MICROSOFT OVER THE LAST COUPLE OF YEARS TO

        24  TALK TO THE PRESS ON MICROSOFT'S BEHALF RELATED TO ISSUES

        25  IN THIS LITIGATION; CORRECT, SIR?

                                                           53

         1  A.   YES.

         2  Q.   AND APPROXIMATELY HOW MANY TIMES?

         3  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  I WOULD SAY FIVE OR SIX.

         4  Q.   AND WHO ASKED YOU TO DO THAT?

         5  A.   GENERALLY, THE REQUESTS WOULD COME THROUGH OUR

         6  CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT, SO I DON'T KNOW WHO

         7  ASKED THEM.

         8  Q.   DID YOU PERSONALLY SPEAK TO PEOPLE FROM MICROSOFT?

         9  A.   ABOUT TALKING TO THE PRESS?

        10  Q.   YES.  DID PEOPLE FROM MICROSOFT PERSONALLY CALL YOU

        11  AND ASK YOU TO TALK TO THE PRESS ON MICROSOFT'S BEHALF

        12  RELATED TO ISSUES IN THIS LITIGATION?

        13  A.   I DON'T RECALL THAT HAPPENING.

        14  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT YOUR DEPOSITION, PAGE 23.

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   LET ME BEGIN AT PAGE 23, LINE FIVE, (READING):

        17                "QUESTION:  PRIOR TO THE TIME THAT MR. GATES

        18           CALLED YOU THREE OR FOUR WEEKS AGO AND ASKED YOU

        19           IF YOU WOULD BE PREPARED TO TESTIFY, HAD ANYONE

        20           FROM MICROSOFT ASKED YOU TO HELP IN THEIR CASE

        21           AGAINST THE GOVERNMENT?

        22                ANSWER:  YES."

        23           DO YOU RECALL GIVING THAT QUESTION AND ANSWER?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   DOES THAT REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT PEOPLE HAD
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         1  ACTUALLY CALLED YOU TO ASK YOU TO MAKE STATEMENTS TO THE

         2  PRESS?

         3  A.   I THINK--THIS IS WHAT I'M SAYING.  YOU ASKED ME THIS

         4  HERE, TOO, JUST A FEW MINUTES AGO.  PEOPLE ASKED ME TO

         5  PARTICIPATE.  I DO REMEMBER BEING ASKED.  I PARTICIPATED.

         6  WHEN YOU ASK WHO, I SAID GENERALLY THEY GO THROUGH OUR PR

         7  FIRM.  I DON'T REMEMBER WHO.  I DON'T REMEMBER WHO.

         8           NOW, I DON'T KNOW WHETHER I ACTUALLY TALKED TO A

         9  PERSON FROM MICROSOFT OR NOT.  THE GENERAL WAY THIS WAS

        10  HANDLED WOULD BE THROUGH OUR CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

        11  PEOPLE.  NOW, MAYBE I GOT A VOICEMAIL WHICH I WOULD HAVE

        12  FORWARDED TO CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS.  THEY WOULD HAVE

        13  CHECKED WITH THE PERSON, SORTED IT OUT, AND DECIDED IF

        14  THEY WANTED ME TO SPEAK TO THEM.

        15           MOST OF THE PRESS HAS MY DIRECT NUMBER AND HAS

        16  DIRECT ACCESS, AND I TALK TO THEM DIRECTLY, BUT REQUESTS

        17  TO SPEAK TO THE PRESS LIKE THIS GENERALLY GO THROUGH OUR

        18  CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS.

        19           I DON'T THINK I SAID ANYTHING IN HERE

        20  INCONSISTENT WITH THAT.

        21  Q.   LET'S CONTINUE DOWN.  AFTER SAYING THAT PEOPLE FROM

        22  MICROSOFT HAD ASKED YOU TO HELP THEM IN THEIR CASE AGAINST

        23  THE GOVERNMENT, THE QUESTIONING CONTINUES, (READING):

        24                "QUESTION:  WHO?

        25                ANSWER:  I DON'T RECALL THE INDIVIDUAL
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         1           PEOPLE AND THE TIMES.

         2                QUESTION:  DO I TAKE IT FROM YOUR ANSWER

         3           THAT THERE WERE MULTIPLE PEOPLE AND MULTIPLE

         4           TIMES?

         5                ANSWER:  OVER THE LAST TWO OR THREE YEARS,

         6           I'VE BEEN ASKED ON OCCASION IF I WOULD SPEAK TO

         7           PEOPLE IN THE PRESS ABOUT ISSUES THAT AFFECT THE

         8           INDUSTRY, AND ALSO ISSUES THAT AFFECTED

         9           MICROSOFT'S LITIGATION.

        10                QUESTION:  WHO HAD ASKED YOU TO DO THIS?

        11                ANSWER:  I DON'T REMEMBER SPECIFICALLY WHO

        12           ASKED ME.  I'D GET REQUESTS FROM MICROSOFT

        13           OCCASIONALLY.

        14                QUESTION:  DO YOU REMEMBER ANY OF THE PEOPLE

        15           AT MICROSOFT THAT ASKED YOU TO TALK TO THE PRESS

        16           ON MICROSOFT'S BEHALF IN CONNECTION WITH THIS

        17           LITIGATION?

        18                ANSWER:  I DON'T REMEMBER THE NAMES OF THE

        19           PEOPLE.  THEY WEREN'T PEOPLE I WORKED WITH AND

        20           KNEW WELL OR KNEW AT ALL."

        21           NOW, YOU DON'T MENTION ANYTHING ABOUT THE

        22  REQUESTS COMING FROM YOUR PR DEPARTMENT.  YOU'RE CLEARLY

        23  HERE TALKING ABOUT REQUESTS THAT CAME TO YOU FROM A

        24  MICROSOFT; CORRECT, SIR?

        25  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.
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         1  Q.   AND THEN IN THE NEXT QUESTION AND ANSWER, (READING):

         2                "QUESTION:  HOW MANY PEOPLE FROM MICROSOFT

         3           CALLED YOU OVER THE LAST COUPLE OF YEARS AND

         4           ASKED YOU TO TALK TO THE PRESS ON MICROSOFT'S

         5           BEHALF RELATED TO ISSUES IN THIS LITIGATION?

         6                ANSWER:  I DON'T KNOW.

         7                QUESTION:  APPROXIMATELY.

         8                ANSWER:  FOUR OR FIVE, THREE OR FOUR.

         9                QUESTION:  WERE THESE TELEPHONE

        10           CONVERSATIONS?

        11                ANSWER:  YES."

        12           AND DO YOU RECALL GIVING THAT TESTIMONY, SIR?

        13  A.   YES.

        14  Q.   AND DOES THAT REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION AS TO WHAT

        15  THE FACTS WERE?

        16  A.   I THINK THE FACTS ARE THAT THERE WERE CALLS, A FEW,

        17  FOUR, FIVE, SIX, WE TALKED ABOUT.  MY RECOLLECTION IS MOST

        18  OF THESE CALLS GOT DIVERTED ONE WAY OR ANOTHER TO

        19  CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS.  I AGREE, AND I THINK I HAVE

        20  BEEN CONSISTENT.  I MIGHT HAVE TALKED DIRECTLY TO SOMEONE

        21  FROM MICROSOFT.  I DON'T REMEMBER WHO.  BUT IN ALMOST

        22  EVERY CASE, I REALLY WOULD BELIEVE THAT IT WAS DIVERTED TO

        23  CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS, AND THEY SET UP THE PRESS

        24  INTERVIEW OR DECIDED NOT TO DO THE PRESS INTERVIEW.

        25           BUT I REALLY DON'T KNOW.  IT'S QUITE POSSIBLE
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         1  THAT I DID TALK DIRECTLY TO SOMEONE.  PEOPLE HAVE MY

         2  EXTENSION, AND THEY DIALED IT, AND IF IT RUNG, I PICKED IT

         3  UP IF I WAS SITTING THERE.

         4  Q.   I HAD THOUGHT THAT YOU HAD SAID JUST A MOMENT AGO

         5  THAT IT WAS CLEAR FROM THIS TESTIMONY THAT YOU HAD TALKED

         6  DIRECTLY TO PEOPLE FROM MICROSOFT ABOUT THIS.  DID I

         7  MISUNDERSTAND YOU?

         8  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER IF I TALKED DIRECTLY ON THIS ISSUE

         9  OR WHETHER OR NOT THEY ALL HAPPENED TO GET DIVERTED.  THEY

        10  ALL HAPPENED TO BE VOICEMAILS THAT I LISTENED TO, AND I

        11  FORWARDED.  I HONESTLY DON'T REMEMBER, DAVID.  I REALLY

        12  DON'T.

        13  Q.   YOU, AT LEAST, WOULD AGREE THAT AT THE TIME OF YOUR

        14  DEPOSITION TWO OR THREE WEEKS AGO, IT WAS CLEARLY YOUR

        15  BELIEF THAT YOU HAD TALKED TO PEOPLE YOURSELF?

        16  A.   I THINK AT THE TIME OF THE DEPOSITION, WE WEREN'T

        17  DRAWING SUCH A FINE LINE ON THE "I," BUT YOUR POINT IS

        18  MADE, I AGREE, EXACTLY WHAT THE POINT YOU HAVE ESTABLISHED

        19  HERE THE LAST FIVE MINUTES.

        20  Q.   OKAY.  THERE CAME A TIME WHEN YOU WERE GIVEN A

        21  SUMMARY OF WHAT YOUR TESTIMONY WAS GOING TO BE AT THIS

        22  TRIAL; CORRECT, SIR?

        23  A.   I WAS GIVEN A DOCUMENT THAT LISTS AREAS THAT I MIGHT

        24  BE ASKED ABOUT, YES, SIR.

        25  Q.   AND PRIOR TO THE TIME THAT THAT DOCUMENT WAS FILED
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         1  WITH THE COURT, YOU HAD NOT SEEN IT EITHER IN FINAL OR

         2  DRAFT FORM; CORRECT, SIR?

         3  A.   THAT'S MY RECOLLECTION, THAT I GOT IT THE SAME DAY IT

         4  WAS FILED.

         5  Q.   AND THAT YOU HAD NEVER SEEN A DRAFT OF IT EITHER;

         6  CORRECT, SIR?

         7  A.   THAT WAS MY RECOLLECTION.

         8  Q.   NOW, ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU TOLD ME AT YOUR

         9  DEPOSITION THAT YOU REMEMBERED WAS THAT YOU HAD BEEN

        10  QUOTED IN THE PRESS AS SAYING THAT MICROSOFT HAD DONE SOME

        11  BAD THINGS.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        12  A.   YES, I DO RECALL THAT CONVERSATION WITH YOU.

        13  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2279,

        14  WHICH I WOULD OFFER AT THIS TIME.

        15           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, MAY I INQUIRE OF

        16  MR. BOIES THE PURPOSE FOR WHICH HE OFFERS THIS DOCUMENT?

        17           MR. BOIES:  THE PURPOSE FOR WHICH I'M OFFERING IT

        18  IS THE QUOTATION ON PAGE FOUR, THE PAGE--THE DENOMINATED

        19  PAGE FOUR OF THIS ARTICLE, AT THE TOP.

        20           MR. HOLLEY:  IF THIS IS BEING OFFERED FOR THE

        21  TRUTH OF THE ASSERTIONS MR. EUBANKS EVER SAID THIS, I

        22  OBJECT ON HEARSAY GROUNDS.

        23           THE COURT:  I SUPPOSE YOU BETTER ASK HIM WHETHER

        24  OR NOT HE SAID IT.

        25  BY MR. BOIES:
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         1  Q.   LET ME BEGIN, MR. EUBANKS, WAS THIS THE ARTICLE THAT

         2  YOU WERE REFERRING TO, THIS NEW YORK TIMES ARTICLE DATED

         3  NOVEMBER 1998?

         4  A.   YES, THIS IS THE JOHN MARKOFF ARTICLE.  THAT'S WHERE

         5  I SAY MICROSOFT DID SOME BAD THINGS, I'M QUOTED AS SAYING

         6  IN THE ARTICLE.  YES, THAT'S THE ARTICLE.

         7  Q.   AND DID YOU MAKE THE STATEMENT THAT IS ATTRIBUTED TO

         8  YOU HERE AND THAT IS INCLUDED IN QUOTATION MARKS IN THIS

         9  ARTICLE?

        10  A.   I CERTAINLY DON'T KNOW IF I DID THIS.  I HAVE A LOT

        11  OF RESPECT FOR JOHN.  I HAVE KNOWN HIM A LONG TIME.  I

        12  DON'T THINK JOHN WOULD MISQUOTE ME INTENTIONALLY, SO IF I

        13  THINK IF HE SAID--LET ME CLARIFY ONE MORE TIME WHAT I

        14  CLARIFIED IN THE DEPOSITION ABOUT THIS.

        15           I HAVE CONSISTENTLY SAID THE FOLLOWING TO PEOPLE:

        16  THAT IF MICROSOFT DID SOMETHING THAT WAS WRONG, THEN THE

        17  COURT SHOULD DEAL WITH THAT, BUT THE GOVERNMENT HAS TO

        18  FOCUS ON THE BROADER ISSUES AND THE COMPETITIVENESS OF OUR

        19  INDUSTRY IN THE 21ST CENTURY.  THAT'S THE POINT ABOUT

        20  WHICH THIS CAME OUT OF.  I WILL TAKE CREDIT THAT I SLIPPED

        21  UP AND SAID IT THE WRONG WAY, AND JOHN WROTE IT DOWN THAT

        22  WAY.  I MEAN, I'M NOT GOING TO QUIBBLE ABOUT THAT.

        23           BUT WHAT I DO THINK IS IMPORTANT IS TO POINT OUT

        24  THAT THE CONTEXT OF THIS IS AROUND LET'S FOCUS THE ENERGY

        25  OF THE GOVERNMENT ON THE COMPETITIVENESS OF OUR INDUSTRY
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         1  GOING FORWARD, AND THAT THAT SHOULD BE THE PREDOMINANT

         2  ISSUE AT HAND.  AND I'M VERY COMFORTABLE THAT WAS THE

         3  CONTEXT IN WHICH WHATEVER I SAID WAS SAID.

         4           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 2279 IS ADMITTED.

         5                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2279 WAS

         6                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         7           MR. BOIES:  LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS NEXT BE

         8  HANDED GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2280.

         9           AND THIS IS A NOVEMBER 12, 1999--I'M SORRY, A

        10  NOVEMBER 12, 1990, ARTICLE HEADED "MIGHTY MICROSOFT BREEDS

        11  FEAR, ENVY."

        12  BY MR. BOIES:

        13  Q.   AND THE PORTION I WOULD LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION

        14  TO IS THE SEVENTH PARAGRAPH DOWN--

        15           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, MAY I INQUIRE OF

        16  MR. BOIES WHETHER HE'S GOING TO ENTER THIS INTO EVIDENCE

        17  OR JUST ASK HIM THE QUESTION?

        18           MR. BOIES:  I WILL OFFER IT, IF YOU HAVE NO

        19  OBJECTION.  IF YOU ARE GOING TO HAVE AN OBJECTION, I'M

        20  GOING TO TRY TO LAY A FOUNDATION THROUGH THE WITNESS.  THE

        21  LAST TIME I OFFERED IT, YOU HAD AN OBJECTION.  AND IF YOU

        22  ARE PREPARED TO ADMIT IT, I WILL OFFER IT NOW.

        23           MR. HOLLEY:  JUST INQUIRING, YOUR HONOR.  I WILL

        24  OBJECT ON HEARSAY GROUNDS, SO MR. BOIES--

        25           THE COURT:  YOU'VE GOT TO LAY A FOUNDATION.
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         1  BY MR. BOIES:

         2  Q.   GOING BACK TO PARAGRAPH SEVEN, MR. EUBANKS--DO YOU

         3  SEE THAT?--IT'S THE ONE WHERE THERE IS A QUOTATION--

         4  A.   ONE I COUNTED TO--IT'S THE ONE WITH MY NAME IN IT.

         5  IS THAT THE ONE YOU MEAN?

         6  Q.   YES.

         7  A.   OR THE ONE THAT'S AFTER THAT?  THE ONE WITH MY NAME

         8  IN IT?

         9  Q.   YES.

        10  A.   I SEE THAT PARAGRAPH, YES.

        11  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT THAT YOU SAID WHAT IS

        12  ATTRIBUTED TO YOU THERE?

        13  A.   IT WAS TEN YEARS AGO.  I DON'T REMEMBER SAYING THAT.

        14  I HAVE NO IDEA.

        15  Q.   WELL, DID YOU BELIEVE IN NOVEMBER OF 1990 THAT BILL

        16  GATES THOUGHT THERE SHOULD BE ONE COMPANY, AND THAT'S

        17  MICROSOFT, AND THAT MICROSOFT'S INTENTION WAS TO DOMINATE

        18  THE INDUSTRY?

        19  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE I BELIEVED THAT IN 1980, NO, I

        20  DIDN'T.

        21  Q.   I MEAN TO SAY 1990, SIR.

        22  A.   1990.

        23  Q.   THE DATE OF THIS ARTICLE.

        24  A.   YES, I DIDN'T BELIEVE THAT IN 1990.  I THINK THAT

        25  WOULD HAVE BEEN TOTALLY IMPRACTICAL IN 1990.  I THINK THAT
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         1  I BELIEVE THAT MAY BE IN 1975, WHEN THERE WAS A VERY SMALL

         2  INDUSTRY, BUT I DIDN'T BELIEVE THAT IN 1990.

         3  Q.   DID YOU REVIEW THIS ARTICLE IN PREPARATION FOR YOUR

         4  TESTIMONY?

         5  A.   NO, I DON'T BELIEVE I DID.

         6  Q.   YOU DON'T HAVE ANY REASON THAT YOU CAN THINK OF AS TO

         7  WHY THIS REPORTER WOULD HAVE MADE UP THIS QUOTE, DO YOU,

         8  SIR?

         9  A.   I DON'T HAVE ANY IDEA WHERE HE GOT THE QUOTE, TO

        10  BEGIN WITH.  I CERTAINLY WOULDN'T ACCUSE SOMEONE OF MAKING

        11  SOMETHING UP.  I HAVE NO GROUNDS TO ACCUSE HIM OF THAT OR

        12  THAT I SAID IT.  I THINK I SAID THAT.

        13           MR. BOIES:  I WILL OFFER GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2280,

        14  LIMITED TO THE SECTION THAT WE'VE TALKED ABOUT.

        15           MR. HOLLEY:  I OBJECT ON HEARSAY GROUNDS, YOUR

        16  HONOR.

        17           THE COURT:  OBJECTION IS SUSTAINED.

        18           MR. BOIES:  LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE SHOWN

        19  GOVERNMENT EXHIBITS 2078 AND 2080.

        20  BY MR. BOIES:

        21  Q.   FOCUSING FIRST ON GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2078, DO YOU

        22  RECOGNIZE THIS AS A SERIES OF E-MAILS FROM PEOPLE WITHIN

        23  SYMANTEC?

        24  A.   YES, I DO.

        25  Q.   FOCUSING NEXT ON GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2080, DO YOU
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         1  RECOGNIZE THIS AS A BRIEFER SERIES OF E-MAILS FROM PEOPLE

         2  WITHIN SYMANTEC?

         3  A.   YES, I DO.

         4           MR. BOIES:  I WOULD OFFER GOVERNMENT EXHIBITS

         5  2078 AND 2080.

         6           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         7           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBITS 2078 AND 2080

         8  ARE ADMITTED.

         9                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NOS. 2078 AND

        10                          2080 WERE ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        11  BY MR. BOIES:

        12  Q.   DO YOU RECALL TELLING MR. HOLLEY THAT YOU WOULD

        13  COMPETE WITH MICROSOFT IN CERTAIN AREAS AND COOPERATE WITH

        14  THEM IN OTHERS, AND THAT MICROSOFT WORKED WELL WITH YOU IN

        15  THE AREAS IN WHICH YOU WANTED TO COOPERATE, REGARDLESS OF

        16  WHAT YOU DID IN THE AREAS IN WHICH YOU WERE COMPETING?

        17  A.   YES, I DO REMEMBER SAYING THAT.

        18  Q.   AND I THINK YOU SAID THAT ONE OF THE AREAS IN WHICH

        19  YOU COMPETED WAS IN THE JAVA TOOLS AREA; IS THAT CORRECT?

        20  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        21  Q.   NOW, WITH RESPECT TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2078, THIS

        22  RELATES TO A PROPOSED STATEMENT THAT MR. PAUL WHITE WANTED

        23  TO MAKE CONCERNING JAVA; CORRECT?

        24  A.   THAT'S CORRECT, YES.

        25  Q.   AND ON THE SECOND PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT, ONE OF THE
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         1  THINGS THAT MR. WHITE PURPORTED TO SAY WAS VARIOUS THINGS

         2  ABOUT MICROSOFT AND JAVA, INCLUDING IN THE SECOND

         3  PARAGRAPH, THAT THE RELEASE OF J-6 WOULD SEEM TO BE

         4  ANOTHER SIGN OF MICROSOFT'S AMBIVALENCE TOWARDS JAVA.

         5  IT'S AS IF THEY CAN'T DECIDE WHETHER TO KILL IT OR EMBRACE

         6  IT.  SOME MIGHT SAY THIS IS NOT MUTUALLY EXCLUSIVE FOR

         7  MICROSOFT.

         8           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         9  A.   YES, SIR.

        10  Q.   AND THEN IN THE NEXT PARAGRAPH MR. WHITE PROPOSES TO

        11  WRITE THAT MICROSOFT HAD ANNOUNCED THAT MICROSOFT WAS,

        12  QUOTE, FULLY SUPPORTING JAVA, BUT THEN THEY FAILED TO

        13  SUPPORT JDK 1.1, JFC AND RMI.  SECOND, THEY USED TO

        14  SUPPORT AFC, BUT NOW THEY'RE PROMOTING WFC.  I FEEL SORRY

        15  FOR ALL THOSE LOYAL MICROSOFT DEVELOPERS WHO ARE TRYING TO

        16  MAKE A DECISION ON WHICH TECHNOLOGY TO USE.

        17           FIRST, WHAT DOES JFC REFER TO?

        18  A.   I'M DRAWING A BLANK.  IT'S JAVA SOMETHING CLASSES.

        19  Q.   JAVA FOUNDATION CLASSES?

        20  A.   FOUNDATION CLASSES, THANK YOU.

        21  Q.   AND WHAT DOES RMI STAND FOR?

        22  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

        23  Q.   IS IT A FUNCTION OR SUBROUTINE RELATED TO SUN'S

        24  VERSION OF JAVA?

        25  A.   IT'S ONE OF THE INTERFACES OR ONE OF THE LIBRARIES
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         1  THAT SUN SUPPORTS, I BELIEVE.  I DON'T REALLY KNOW,

         2  THOUGH, AS I SAID, WHAT RMI IS.

         3  Q.   DOWN AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST PAGE, MR. WHITE

         4  PROPOSES TO WRITE, QUOTE, BY BREAKING AWAY FROM PURE JAVA,

         5  THERE IS A PERCEPTION THAT MICROSOFT IS SEEKING TO CLOUD

         6  THE ISSUE, THROWING UP NEW WHIZ-BANG TECHNOLOGIES WHICH

         7  HAVE LITTLE PRACTICAL USE IN 90 PERCENT OF APPLICATIONS.

         8           NOW, ULTIMATELY, SYMANTEC CONCLUDED THAT IT WAS

         9  NOT IN ITS INTEREST TO HAVE MR. WHITE MAKE THESE

        10  STATEMENTS; CORRECT?

        11  A.   TO CUT THROUGH ALL THE E-MAILS AND GET TO THE

        12  QUESTION THAT YOU ASKED, PAUL WHITE WAS THE REGIONAL

        13  MANAGER IN EUROPE.  HE HAD SOME STRONG OPINIONS ON THE--AS

        14  WE ENCOURAGED PEOPLE TO HAVE ON THE TECHNOLOGY AND HOW TO

        15  EVOLVE.  AT THE END OF THE DAY, SYMANTEC MADE A DECISION

        16  THAT I THINK WAS THE RIGHT DECISION, WHICH WAS THIS WAS A

        17  SQUABBLE BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND SUN ON STANDARDS, AND OUR

        18  JOB IS NOT TO GET IN THE MIDDLE OF THESE TO TAKE OPINIONS

        19  ON IT, BUT TO SUPPORT OUR CUSTOMERS WITH JAVA, AND THAT WE

        20  FOCUSED ON THAT AND NOT TAKE SHOTS AT PEOPLE'S DECISIONS.

        21           NOW, THIS E-MAIL CHARACTERIZES THIS IN ONE WAY

        22  BECAUSE HE HAD A VERY STRONG OPINION ABOUT IT.  THERE ARE

        23  PROBABLY MULTIPLE SIDES TO THIS.

        24           AT THE END OF THE DAY, THE MANAGEMENT TWO OR

        25  THREE LEVELS BELOW ME SAID, LISTEN, THIS IS NOT SOMETHING
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         1  WE ARE GOING TO GET IN THE MIDDLE OF.  WE ARE NOT GOING TO

         2  GO OUT AND BASH ONE SIDE OR THE OTHER ON THESE KIND OF

         3  ISSUES.

         4           IT'S VERY CONSISTENT WITH THE WAY WE RUN THE

         5  COMPANY, RAN THE COMPANY, AND I'M ACTUALLY PROUD THEY CAME

         6  TO THAT CONCLUSION ON THIS.

         7  Q.   NOW, THE REASON THAT THEY CAME TO THIS CONCLUSION WAS

         8  BECAUSE PEOPLE DID NOT WANT TO BE CRITICAL OF MICROSOFT

         9  BECAUSE SYMANTEC WAS AFRAID THAT THAT WOULD MAKE MICROSOFT

        10  MAD; CORRECT, SIR?

        11  A.   NO, SIR.  THE REASON THEY CAME TO THE CONCLUSION IS

        12  BECAUSE IT'S OUR BUSINESS POLICY TO NOT GET EMBROILED IN

        13  ATTACKING ANY COMPANY.  THERE ARE JUST AS MANY OF THESE

        14  KIND OF SITUATIONS AROUND APPLE OR SUN THAT CAME UP, ALSO.

        15  THIS ONE HAPPENS TO BE ABOUT MICROSOFT.  IT'S APPROACHED

        16  IN--I BELIEVE IT'S BEST FOR BUSINESS.  THERE IS NO VALUE

        17  ADDED IN GETTING IN THE MIDDLE OF THIS.

        18  Q.   WELL, SIR, LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE FIRST

        19  PAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT, AND ONE OF THE E-MAILS THAT GOES TO

        20  MR. WHITE, IN WHICH YOU REFERRED TO AS THE MANAGEMENT

        21  BELOW YOU WROTE AT THE BOTTOM, "OBVIOUSLY, THE STATEMENT

        22  IS CRITICAL OF MICROSOFT, AND GENERALLY WE WOULD NOT WANT

        23  TO PUT THEIR NOSES OUT OF JOINT."

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        25  A.   I DO.  I ABSOLUTELY SEE IT.
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         1  Q.   AND DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO BELIEVE THAT THAT WAS

         2  NOT THE REASON THAT THIS DECISION WAS MADE?

         3  A.   WELL, A LOT ABOUT E-MAIL IS THE PEOPLE DON'T SPEND A

         4  LOT OF TIME CHOOSING THE WORDS--

         5  Q.   I KNOW THAT ABOUT E-MAIL, TOO, SIR.

         6  A.   WE AGREE.  AND I THINK YOU UNDERSTAND VERY WELL THAT

         7  WHAT THE POINT HERE IS IS THAT IN THE END OF THE DAY, THEY

         8  CAME WITH THE RIGHT BUSINESS CONCLUSION.

         9           YEAH, WE COULD HAVE WORDED IT A LOT OF DIFFERENT

        10  WAYS, BUT THE POINT HERE IS THAT WE DON'T GET EMBATTLED IN

        11  CRITICIZING PEOPLE THAT WE WORK WITH, WHOEVER THEY ARE, AS

        12  A BUSINESS PRACTICE.  IT'S NOT WHAT OUR CUSTOMERS WANT US

        13  TO DO, AND IT'S NOT WHAT WE DO.

        14  Q.   WELL, AT THE VERY TOP WHERE MR. WHITE ENDS THE E-MAIL

        15  CHAIN, AND HE SAYS, "I DECIDED THAT IT'S BETTER TO SAY

        16  NOTHING THAN RISK THE BLAST FROM MICROSOFT."

        17           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        18  A.   YES.

        19  Q.   AND IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT WHAT MR. WHITE IS SAYING

        20  HERE IS HE HAS DECIDED NOT TO SAY SOMETHING CRITICAL OF

        21  MICROSOFT BECAUSE HE DOESN'T WANT TO HAVE MICROSOFT

        22  UNHAPPY?  WOULD THAT BE A FAIR INTERPRETATION OF THIS

        23  LANGUAGE?

        24  A.   WELL, I ACCEPT THAT'S YOUR INTERPRETATION.  MY

        25  INTERPRETATION--
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         1  Q.   IT WOULD BE A FAIR INTERPRETATION AS THE CHIEF

         2  EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THIS COMPANY.

         3  A.   AS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY AT THE TIME

         4  THESE WERE WRITTEN, THIS ENDS UP REFLECTING A COUPLE OF

         5  THINGS ABOUT THE COMPANY.  ONE, PEOPLE ARE ABLE TO SPEAK

         6  THEIR MIND.  OBVIOUSLY, PAUL WANTED TO GO OUT THERE AND

         7  BLAST IT BECAUSE HE DIDN'T AGREE WITH MICROSOFT'S

         8  DECISION.

         9           SECOND, IT ENDED UP ADHERING TO OUR FUNDAMENTAL

        10  PRINCIPLE THAT WE DON'T GET ENGAGED IN THIS KIND OF

        11  BASHING BECAUSE IT IS DEFOCUSING, AND IT ISN'T PRODUCTIVE

        12  TO RUNNING THE BUSINESS.  THAT IS WHAT I THINK IS A FAIR

        13  AND HONEST CONCLUSION FROM THIS PARTICULAR STRING OF

        14  E-MAILS.

        15  Q.   WELL, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT

        16  EXHIBIT 2080, AND IN PARTICULAR, PARAGRAPH TWO DOWN AT THE

        17  BOTTOM OF THE PAGE, IN WHICH IN ARGUING AGAINST PUTTING

        18  OUT A STATEMENT FOLLOWING A LITIGATION DEFEAT FOR

        19  MICROSOFT WITH RESPECT TO ITS LITIGATION WITH SUN, THE

        20  AUTHORS HERE WRITE, QUOTE, IF WE APPEAR IN ANY WAY TO BE

        21  ENJOYING MICROSOFT'S BEING MADE TO CONFORM TO SUN'S JAVA

        22  SPECIFICATIONS, WE MIGHT NEGATIVELY IMPACT THE

        23  RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN SYMANTEC'S OTHER BUSINESS UNITS AND

        24  MICROSOFT.

        25           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?
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         1  A.   YES.  AS PART OF THAT IN THE PARAGRAPH ABOVE, I THINK

         2  WHAT THE PERSON IS SAYING IS WE DON'T GO OUT AND DO THAT

         3  TO COMPANIES.  THEY'RE CONTRASTING TO THE FACT THAT

         4  INPRISE DOES.  THAT'S JUST NOT OUR--NOT OUR STYLE TO DO

         5  THIS.

         6           NOT EVERYONE IN THE COMPANY, OF COURSE, HAS TO

         7  AGREE WITH IT.  WHAT I LIKE IS FOR PEOPLE TO ADHERE TO

         8  FUNDAMENTAL PRINCIPLES LIKE THIS, AND WE ACCEPT A LOT OF

         9  PASSION IN THESE E-MAILS.

        10  Q.   WELL, SIR, THE AUTHOR OF THIS E-MAIL CLEARLY BELIEVES

        11  THAT IF SYMANTEC IS CRITICAL OF MICROSOFT, THAT MIGHT

        12  NEGATIVELY IMPACT THE WAY MICROSOFT DEALT WITH SYMANTEC'S

        13  OTHER BUSINESS UNITS; CORRECT?  THAT'S WHAT THESE WORDS

        14  SAY.

        15  A.   DEBRA UNDERSTANDS VERY WELL THAT AT SYMANTEC, THE WAY

        16  WE CAN COOPERATE AND WORK WITH COMPANIES IN MUTUALLY

        17  ADVANTAGEOUS BUSINESSES AND STILL COMPETE IN OTHER

        18  BUSINESSES, IS BY RESTRAINING OURSELVES FROM TAKING CHEAP

        19  SHOTS ABOUT THEM, ESPECIALLY WHEN THEY'RE EMBROILED IN A

        20  BUSINESS ISSUE THAT DOESN'T INVOLVE US.  THAT'S WHAT DEBRA

        21  REALLY UNDERSTANDS.

        22  Q.   WELL, SIR, WHEN MR. WHITE WAS PROPOSING TO MAKE THIS

        23  STATEMENT, THIS WAS NOT ABOUT SOMETHING THAT DIDN'T

        24  INVOLVED SYMANTEC.  THIS WAS SOMETHING THAT INVOLVED

        25  SYMANTEC DIRECTLY IN CONNECTION WITH ITS JAVA TOOLS
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         1  BUSINESS; CORRECT?

         2  A.   NO, ACTUALLY THIS WAS--NO, I THINK, SIR, THAT WHAT

         3  THIS WAS ABOUT IS WHEN THE COURTS RULED SOMETHING THAT

         4  MICROSOFT HAD TO DO RELATIVE TO JAVA, AND IT INVOLVED

         5  JAVA--SUN AND MICROSOFT, AND THEN INPRISE, I BELIEVE--I'M

         6  INTERPRETING FROM READING THESE DOCUMENTS NOW--THAT

         7  INPRISE PUT OUT A PRESS RELEASE THAT GLOATED ABOUT THIS,

         8  AND OUR PEOPLE, WHO ARE VERY PASSIONATE ABOUT OUR BUSINESS

         9  AND WINNING AND WANTING TO GO OUT AND DO THE SAME THING,

        10  AND COOL HEADS PREVAILED, SAID NO, THAT'S NOT WHAT WE DO,

        11  WE PUT OUR ENERGY ON FOCUSING ON GETTING THE CUSTOMER TO

        12  UNDERSTAND THE BENEFITS OF OUR PRODUCT.  THAT IS, IN FACT,

        13  THE WAY WE RUN THE BUSINESS--RAN THE BUSINESS.

        14  Q.   LET ME SEE IF I CAN GET AT LEAST A LIMITED AGREEMENT

        15  HERE.

        16           YOU DO AGREE--AND LET'S TAKE GOVERNMENT

        17  EXHIBIT 2080 FIRST--THAT THERE ISN'T ANYTHING IN HERE

        18  ABOUT SAYING THIS IS GOING TO BE BAD FOR OUR CUSTOMERS.

        19  WE'RE NOT DOING IT BECAUSE WE'RE NEVER BAD TO ANYBODY OR

        20  WE NEVER SAY CRITICAL THINGS ABOUT ANYBODY.  WHAT IT SAYS

        21  IS HERE, THEY DON'T WANT TO DO IT BECAUSE THEY'RE AFRAID

        22  IT WILL NEGATIVELY IMPACT THE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN

        23  SYMANTEC'S OTHER BUSINESS UNITS AND MICROSOFT.  THAT'S AT

        24  LEAST WHAT THIS AUTHOR WAS CONCERNED ABOUT; WILL YOU AT

        25  LEAST GRANT THAT?
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         1  A.   I WILL GRANT THAT THIS AUTHOR WAS ARTICULATING WHY WE

         2  HAVE THE PRINCIPLE I EXPLAINED TO YOU.

         3  Q.   BUT THE AUTHOR WASN'T EVEN MENTIONING THIS PRINCIPLE.

         4  A.   NO.  DEBRA WAS EXPLAINING THE SORT OF UNDERLYING

         5  PRINCIPLES TO GET THERE.

         6           I'M TRYING TO FIND A GROUND OF AGREEMENT, BUT WE

         7  RAN THE COMPANY THIS WAY.  WE WORKED VERY HARD TO FOCUS

         8  OUR ENERGIES ON LONG-TERM PARTNER RELATIONSHIPS WHENEVER

         9  POSSIBLE.  AND WHEN WE VIOLATED THAT, WHEN I VIOLATED IT

        10  BY SAYING SOMETHING I SHOULDN'T HAVE OR WHEN SOMEONE ELSE

        11  DID, WE TRIED TO FOCUS IN ON THAT AND SEE IF WE WOULDN'T

        12  DO THAT AGAIN IN THE FUTURE, WHETHER IT WAS MICROSOFT,

        13  APPLE, SUN, ORACLE--WHOEVER.

        14  Q.   LET ME TRY TO APPROACH IT THIS WAY, AND LET ME LOOK

        15  AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2078.  LET'S LEAVE THE SUN/MICROSOFT

        16  LAWSUIT ASIDE FOR A MOMENT, AND LET'S GO BACK TO

        17  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2078.

        18           NOW, YOU SAID THAT IT WAS GOOD NOT TO BE CRITICAL

        19  OF MICROSOFT AT THE TIME OF THE SUN LAWSUIT BECAUSE THAT

        20  WAS JUST SOMETHING THAT JUST DIDN'T CONCERN YOUR BUSINESS.

        21  BUT WHAT'S BEING TALKED ABOUT IN GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2078

        22  DOES CONCERN YOUR BUSINESS; CORRECT, SIR?

        23  A.   YES, IT CONCERNS OUR BUSINESS.

        24  Q.   AND EVEN HERE WHERE IT DID CONCERN YOUR BUSINESS, IT

        25  WAS DECIDED THAT IT WAS BETTER TO SAY NOTHING THAN RISK
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         1  THE BLAST FROM MICROSOFT; CORRECT, SIR?

         2  A.   THAT'S WHAT THE E-MAIL SAYS.

         3  Q.   OKAY.

         4  A.   NOW, WOULD YOU LIKE ME TO REPEAT ONE MORE TIME THAT

         5  WHAT THIS ISSUE WAS ABOUT WERE PEOPLE--CUSTOMERS

         6  COMPLAINING ABOUT MICROSOFT AND SOME OF OUR PEOPLE

         7  THINKING WE SHOULD JOIN IN AND ADD TO THE CHORUS.  AND OUR

         8  DECISION BY MIDDLE MANAGERS TO ADHERE TO A BROADER POLICY

         9  OF THE COMPANY, WAS NOT TO DO THAT.  AND WE PICKED, I WILL

        10  AGREE, COLORFUL AND POINTED WORDS TO SAY IT, BUT THE END

        11  OF THE DAY THEY CONSISTENTLY ADHERED TO THAT POLICY.

        12  Q.   BUT IT'S NOT ONLY THAT THEY PICKED WHAT YOU CALL

        13  COLORFUL AND POINTED WORDS TO SAY IT.  THEY ALSO OMITTED

        14  TO SAY THE REASON THAT YOU KEEP SAYING IS THE ONLY REASON

        15  THAT YOU HAD THIS POLICY; RIGHT, SIR?

        16  A.   I THINK THAT IN PAUL'S CASE, SINCE HE DIDN'T AGREE

        17  WITH THIS PARTICULAR DECISION, I THINK THAT'S REFLECTED IN

        18  HOW HE WORDED IT.

        19           I MEAN, I LIKE THAT IN PEOPLE.  PEOPLE AREN'T

        20  TRAINED TO RUN THE BUSINESS AND WRITE THE E-MAILS FOR HOW

        21  THEY APPEAR IN COURT.  THEY'RE TRAINED TO RUN THE BUSINESS

        22  SO WE COMMUNICATE EFFECTIVELY.  SO, I UNDERSTOOD IN THIS

        23  HOW OUR JAVA TEAM FELT.  I DIDN'T ACTUALLY SEE THIS

        24  E-MAIL, BUT IF I HAD SEEN IT, THAT'S WHAT I WOULD HAVE

        25  LEARNED FROM IT, AND LIFE WOULD GONE ON.  IT ADHERES TO A
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         1  BUSINESS PRINCIPLE ABOUT HOW WE RAN THE COMPANY.  IT'S NOT

         2  ABOUT MICROSOFT, PER SE.

         3  Q.   WHEN YOU SAY "IT'S NOT ABOUT MICROSOFT, PER SE," YOU

         4  MEAN WHAT YOU REFER TO AS THIS GENERAL POLICY THAT'S NOT

         5  MENTIONED IN THESE DOCUMENTS IS NOT ABOUT MICROSOFT, PER

         6  SE.  YOU RECOGNIZE THAT THIS IS ABOUT MICROSOFT.

         7  A.   ABSOLUTELY.

         8  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME TURN TO A QUESTION RELATING TO THE

         9  DISTRIBUTION OR REDISTRIBUTION OF DLL'S.  YOU TALKED ABOUT

        10  THAT WITH MR. HOLLEY.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        11  A.   ACTUALLY, I DON'T, BUT I WILL ACCEPT THAT I TALKED TO

        12  HIM THIS MORNING ABOUT DLL'S.

        13  Q.   OKAY.  WELL, IF YOU DIDN'T, THEN THIS MAY NOT EVEN BE

        14  RELEVANT, BUT JUST TO BE CLEAR, SYMANTEC DISTRIBUTED, AND

        15  STILL DISTRIBUTES, MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM DLL'S WITH

        16  ITS PRODUCTS; CORRECT, SIR?

        17  A.   ACTUALLY, THAT'S NOT CORRECT.  BUT INSTEAD OF--I

        18  COULD EXPLAIN SORT OF THE BROADER ISSUE HERE.  WE DO NOT

        19  ACTUALLY, TO MY KNOWLEDGE TODAY, DISTRIBUTED DLL.  WE DID

        20  IN THE PAST DISTRIBUTE HTML RENDERING DLL.  WE QUIT

        21  DISTRIBUTING THAT IN NORTON UTILITIES.  WE DO DISTRIBUTE

        22  MS-DOS-SYS AND IOSYS ON A DISK TO PROVIDE A RECOVERY

        23  FUNCTION IN NORTON UTILITIES FOR OUR CUSTOMERS.  THAT'S

        24  PROVIDED UNDER LICENSE FROM MICROSOFT.  I BELIEVE THAT'S

        25  WHAT WE ACTUALLY DO RIGHT NOW.  I JUST DON'T REMEMBER
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         1  TALKING ABOUT THAT WITH MR. HOLLEY THIS MORNING.

         2  Q.   DID YOU DISTRIBUTE DLL'S--MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM

         3  DLL'S WITH YOUR PRODUCTS IN MARCH OF 1998?

         4  A.   YES, WE DID.  I DON'T KNOW WHEN WE STOPPED, BUT WE

         5  DID IN THE PAST.  AS I SAID, WE DID IN THE PAST, WE DID

         6  DISTRIBUTE THIS HTML RENDERING DLL, AND IT WAS USED BY

         7  COMPONENTS OF NORTON UTILITIES.

         8  Q.   AND THERE CAME A TIME WHEN YOU STOPPED DOING THAT; IS

         9  THAT CORRECT?

        10  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

        11  Q.   AND YOU STOPPED DOING THAT WHEN NORTON UTILITIES 3

        12  CAME OUT; IS THAT CORRECT?

        13  A.   YOU'VE DONE MORE HOMEWORK IN THIS THAN I HAVE.  I

        14  DON'T REMEMBER THE TIMING, BUT I--IT SOUNDS LIKE YOU'RE UP

        15  ON THIS ISSUE, SO I WILL ACCEPT THAT.

        16  Q.   LET ME ASK WHETHER YOU RECALL THE REASON THAT YOU

        17  STOPPED DISTRIBUTING THE INTERNET EXPLORER DLL'S WITH

        18  NORTON UTILITIES 3, IF THAT'S WHAT YOU DID.

        19  A.   IT WAS USED IN A FUNCTION THAT OUR RESEARCH SHOWED

        20  CUSTOMERS DIDN'T CARE ABOUT.

        21  Q.   WAS IT ALSO THE CASE THAT WITH RESPECT TO NORTON

        22  UTILITIES 3 THAT UTILITY WOULD WORK, REGARDLESS OF WHAT

        23  BROWSER THE CUSTOMER HAD, AT LEAST WITH RESPECT TO

        24  NAVIGATOR AND--

        25  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE THAT'S THE CASE.  I MAY BE WRONG IN
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         1  THIS, BUT I BELIEVE THAT WE ELIMINATED THE FUNCTIONALITY

         2  THAT USED THE HTML RENDERING ENGINE.  BUT THERE COULD BE

         3  OTHER FUNCTIONALITY THAT THAT IS THE CASE THAT--BUT I

         4  BELIEVE THE DLL THAT WE TALKED ABOUT AT THE DEPOSITION WAS

         5  THE HTML RENDERING DLL, AND THAT WE DIDN'T BELIEVE THAT

         6  FUNCTIONALITY WAS STILL WORTH HAVING IN THE PRODUCT.

         7  Q.   YOU, I THINK, IDENTIFIED PREVIOUSLY RICKY SALEM?

         8  A.   ENRIQUE SALEM.

         9  Q.   AND HE IS--WHAT IS HIS POSITION?

        10  A.   HE WORKED DIRECTLY FOR ME AND RAN THE NORTON

        11  BUSINESS, IS WHAT HE DID.  AND HE STILL HAS THAT JOB, TO

        12  THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

        13  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT HIS DEPOSITION TAKEN MARCH

        14  4, 1998, AT PAGE 15.  AND I WOULD JUST ASK YOU TO READ TO

        15  YOURSELF THAT PAGE AND SEE IF YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO

        16  DISAGREE WITH WHAT HE SAYS THERE.

        17           THE COURT:  WHAT PAGE AGAIN?

        18           MR. BOIES:  PAGE 15.

        19           THE WITNESS:  I READ THE PAGE 15.

        20  BY MR. BOIES:

        21  Q.   AND MAYBE THE EASIEST WAY TO DO IT IS GO DOWN

        22  QUESTION BY QUESTION.  AT THE TOP, (READING):

        23                "QUESTION:  NOW, YOU HAVE A NEW VERSION OF

        24           NORTON UTILITIES; IS THAT CORRECT?

        25                ANSWER:  CORRECT.
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         1                QUESTION:  AND YOU MENTIONED THAT THAT WAS

         2           NORTON UTILITIES 3?

         3                ANSWER:  CORRECT.

         4                QUESTION:  DOES THIS VERSION SHIP WITH A

         5           BROWSER?

         6                ANSWER:  NO, IT DOES NOT."

         7           DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DISAGREE WITH THAT?

         8  A.   BEFORE I ANSWER THAT, COULD I READ PAGE 14?

         9  Q.   ABSOLUTELY.  TAKE AS MUCH TIME TO LOOK AT THE CONTEXT

        10  AS YOU WANT.  AND WHEN YOU HAVE FINISHED, JUST LET ME

        11  KNOW.

        12           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        13  A.   I JUST WANT TO BE SURE--YES, NOW, IF YOU COULD REPEAT

        14  YOUR QUESTION.

        15  Q.   SURE.

        16           FOCUSING ON THE QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS THAT I JUST

        17  READ, WHICH WERE THE QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS FROM LINES ONE

        18  THROUGH EIGHT ON PAGE FIFTEEN, DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO

        19  DISAGREE WITH WHAT MR. SALEM SAYS THERE?

        20  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHAT HE WAS THINKING WHEN HE SAID THIS,

        21  BUT--I MEAN, IT NEVER SHIPPED WITH A BROWSER, AND SO THIS

        22  WAS ONE OF THOSE SITUATIONS WHERE THE QUESTION, DOES THIS

        23  VERSION SHIP WITH A BROWSER, AS IF THE OTHER ONE DID--I

        24  MEAN, IT DIDN'T SHIP WITH THE BROWSER.

        25           THE POINT OF THIS IS, EARLY ON WE SHIPPED A
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         1  RENDERING ENGINE WITH NORTON UTILITIES SO WE COULD DISPLAY

         2  HTML BECAUSE WE COULDN'T COUNT ON EVERY CUSTOMER HAVING A

         3  BROWSER.  A BROWSER WASN'T A PART OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM,

         4  SO EVERYONE HAD TO SCRAMBLE IF THEY WANTED TO DISPLAY HTML

         5  AND GET SOME WAY OF DISPLAYING IT.

         6           WHAT ENRIQUE IS SAYING IS THAT WHEN WE CAME TO

         7  SHIP THE VERSION THREE, HE FELT COMFORTABLE ON COUNTING ON

         8  PEOPLE HAVING A BROWSER, AND THEREFORE HE DIDN'T FEEL THE

         9  NEED TO SHIP IT.  THAT'S, I BELIEVE, WHAT HE'S SAYING HERE

        10  IN THESE QUESTIONS.

        11  Q.   LET'S ME GO BACK TO PAGE 13, JUST SO IT'S CLEAR.

        12  A.   I DIDN'T GO BACK FAR ENOUGH.

        13  Q.   LINE 20, (READING):

        14                "QUESTION:  DID YOU BUNDLE INTERNET EXPLORER

        15           WITH NORTON UTILITIES?

        16                ANSWER:  YES.

        17                QUESTION:  AND WHY IS IT THAT YOU CHOSE TO

        18           BUNDLE INTERNET EXPLORER WITH NORTON UTILITIES?

        19                ANSWER:  WE WERE USING SHARED COMPONENTS

        20           THAT WERE USED BY INTERNET EXPLORER.  AND SINCE

        21           WE HAD ALREADY DONE THAT, WE DECIDED TO DO ALL OF

        22           OUR TESTING WITH INTERNET EXPLORER.

        23                QUESTION:  YOU ARE AWARE THAT MICROSOFT

        24           SHIPS INTERNET EXPLORER WITH ITS OPERATING SYSTEM

        25           WINDOWS 95?
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         1                ANSWER:  YES.

         2                QUESTION:  WHY, THEN, DID YOU ALSO FEEL THE

         3           NEED TO SHIP INTERNET EXPLORER WITH NORTON

         4           UTILITIES?

         5                ANSWER:  WHEN WE SHIPPED NORTON UTILITIES

         6           2.0, AT THAT TIME ALL USERS DIDN'T NECESSARILY

         7           HAVE THE INTERNET--WHAT WE NEEDED FROM INTERNET

         8           EXPLORER, THE COMPONENTS THAT WE NEEDED."

         9           DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT TESTIMONY?

        10  A.   NO, I DON'T AGREE WITH IT.  BUT AGAIN, I'M NOT SURE

        11  THE VALUE OF THE SUBTLE DIFFERENCE.  I BELIEVE WHAT WE DID

        12  WAS SHIP THE HTML RENDERING DLL SO WE WERE SURE CUSTOMERS

        13  HAD IT.  I COULD BE WRONG.  I WOULD BE COMPLETELY WRONG,

        14  AND ENRIQUE SAYS THAT WE SHIPPED THE WHOLE BROWSER.

        15           THE POINT IS, WHEN THE INTERNET ACCESS BECAME SO

        16  IMPORTANT TO CUSTOMERS AND WE HAD COMFORT LEVEL THEY HAD A

        17  BROWSER, THE ONE POINT THAT DOESN'T COME OUT IN HERE IS

        18  NETSCAPE DIDN'T HAVE AN EQUIVALENT HTML RENDERING ENGINE

        19  THAT WE COULD DISTRIBUTE, AND THAT'S WHY WE WENT AND GOT

        20  PERMISSION OR LICENSE TO DISTRIBUTE THE MICROSOFT ONE.

        21           THAT IS MY RECOLLECTION AND UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT

        22  HAPPENED HERE.

        23  Q.   WHAT WAS MR. SALEM'S POSITION IN MARCH OF 1998?

        24  A.   ENRIQUE RAN THE BUSINESS AND WAS DIRECTLY RESPONSIBLE

        25  FOR THIS, WORKING FOR ME AT THAT TIME.
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         1  Q.   WHAT WAS HIS TITLE?

         2  A.   HE WAS THE EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT OF--I DON'T KNOW

         3  WHAT--IT WAS ENRIQUE.  HE RAN THE NORTON BUSINESS.

         4  Q.   YOU WOULD KNOW HIM TO KNOW THAT TYPE OF THING?

         5  A.   EVEN THOUGH LOGICALLY YOU'RE ABSOLUTELY RIGHT, HE WAS

         6  IN A POSITION TO BE BETTER INFORMED.  I'M TELLING YOU TO

         7  THE BEST OF MY ABILITY WHAT I REMEMBER HAPPENED, AND I

         8  THINK I SAID I COULD BE WRONG ABOUT THIS.

         9  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME GO BACK NOW TO PAGE 15.  AND MR. SALEM

        10  HAD TESTIFIED THAT NORTON 3.0 DID NOT SHIP WITH A BROWSER,

        11  AND THEN HE'S ASKED ON LINE NINE, (READING):

        12                "QUESTION:  WHY IS THAT THE CASE?

        13                ANSWER:  WE DIDN'T FEEL THE NEED TO SHIP

        14           WITH A BROWSER FOR THIS VERSION.

        15                QUESTION:  WHY IS THAT?

        16                ANSWER:  WE WERE USING SPECIFIC CONTROLS AND

        17           FUNCTIONALITY OF INTERNET EXPLORER, AND WE

        18           DECIDED IN 3.0 WE COULD ACTUALLY WORK WITH ALL OF

        19           THE BROWSERS AVAILABLE ON THE MARKET.

        20                QUESTION:  SO, IN ESSENCE, NORTON UTILITIES

        21           3 SUPPORTS OTHER BROWSERS BESIDES INTERNET

        22           EXPLORER; IS THAT CORRECT?

        23                ANSWER:  YES.

        24                QUESTION:  BUT YOU DON'T SHIP ANY BROWSER

        25           WITH NORTON UTILITIES?
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         1                ANSWER:  CORRECT."

         2           DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DISAGREE WITH THAT

         3  TESTIMONY?

         4  A.   MY UNDERSTANDING IS THERE'S (SIC) TWO DIFFERENT

         5  ISSUES COMING IN HERE.  WE MADE A DECISION WITH 3.0 THAT

         6  WE WOULD PUT NOTHING IN THE PRODUCT THAT DIDN'T WORK WITH

         7  EVERY BROWSER, SO WE MADE THAT DECISION.  WE ALSO MADE THE

         8  DECISION TO ASSUME THAT BECAUSE OF THE IMPORTANCE OF THE

         9  INTERNET THAT EVERYONE HAD A BROWSER.  IN VERSION TWO WE

        10  HAD SOME VERY SPECIFIC FUNCTIONALITY THAT REQUIRED HTML

        11  RENDERING, AND WE GOT A DLL TO DO THAT.

        12           WHERE, I GUESS, MY MEMORY IS DIFFERENT THAN

        13  ENRIQUE'S, IS I DON'T REMEMBER WE SHIPPED A WHOLE BROWSER,

        14  BUT ONLY THE HTML RENDERING ENGINE WITH VERSION TWO.  AND

        15  VERSION THREE, MY RECOLLECTION IS WE DIDN'T SHIP ANYTHING

        16  FOR THE REASONS THAT I JUST SAID.  THAT'S THE BEST OF WHAT

        17  I CAN REMEMBER ABOUT THIS PARTICULAR ISSUE.

        18  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        19  2274-A THAT WE USED EARLIER.  THIS IS THE 10-Q FOR THE

        20  QUARTER ENDING AT THE END OF LAST YEAR.

        21  A.   YES, SIR, I HAVE IT.

        22  Q.   AND LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE 19, AND IT

        23  BEARS THE NUMBER 19 IN THE SORT OF TOP OF THE MIDDLE OF

        24  THE PAGE.  AND IT SAYS "PRICE COMPETITION" UP AT THE TOP.

        25  A.   I'M SORRY.
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         1  Q.   IF YOU LOOK AT THE BOTTOM LEFT-HAND CORNER.

         2  A.   YES.

         3  Q.   THERE IS SOMETHING THAT SAYS "20 OF 107."

         4  A.   I'M SORRY, I'M ON 19.

         5           YES, SIR, I SEE THAT.

         6  Q.   AT THE PRICE IT SAYS "PRICE COMPETITION"?

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   "PRICE COMPETITION IS OFTEN INTENSE IN THE

         9  MICROCOMPUTER SOFTWARE MARKET."  DO YOU SEE THAT?

        10  A.   YES.

        11  Q.   AND IS THAT A STATEMENT THAT YOU AGREE WITH, SIR?

        12  A.   YES.

        13  Q.   AND DOES THAT APPLY TO THE SOFTWARE PRODUCTS THAT

        14  SYMANTEC OFFERS?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU NEXT TO LOOK AT A DOCUMENT THAT HAS

        17  BEEN MARKED AS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2081.

        18           WAS THIS THE DISCUSSION, THE ARTICLE THAT YOU

        19  WERE TALKING WITH MR. HOLLEY ABOUT WHEN YOU WERE TALKING

        20  ABOUT NATURAL MONOPOLIES?

        21  A.   YES, SIR.

        22           MR. BOIES:  I WOULD OFFER GOVERNMENT

        23  EXHIBIT 2061.

        24           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

        25           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 2081 IS ADMITTED.
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         1                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2081 WAS

         2                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         3  BY MR. BOIES:

         4  Q.   AND THIS WAS SOMETHING THAT YOU PREPARED; ISN'T THAT

         5  CORRECT, SIR?

         6  A.   THE OP-ED, THE DOCUMENT THAT I SENT TO DAN, THE

         7  ARTICLE THAT I SENT TO THE MERCURY, WAS WORKED ON BY A LOT

         8  OF PEOPLE.  AND I GOT THE FINAL DRAFT, MADE THE FINAL

         9  CHANGES, SO I WAS HAPPY WITH IT, AND THEN FORWARDED IT TO

        10  DAN IN THIS E-MAIL THAT'S THERE.  AND THEN IT LOOKS LIKE

        11  SOMEONE AT SYMANTEC IS FORWARDING IT.  I GUESS AMY IS

        12  FORWARDING IT TO--SOMETHING DOESN'T--SOMETHING IS STRANGE

        13  ABOUT THE E-MAIL, BUT I THINK WE COVERED THIS AT THE

        14  DEPOSITION.  IT'S NOT RELEVANT.  THIS DOESN'T QUITE LOOK

        15  LIKE THE WAY, LOOKING AT THE HEADER.  BUT YES, THIS IS THE

        16  E-MAIL I SENT TO DAN, AND THERE IS AN E-MAIL AMY SENT TO

        17  SOMEONE, AND I DON'T KNOW WHO THE JCOLE UP THERE IS.

        18  Q.   ISN'T IT FAIR TO SAY THAT OTHER PEOPLE MAY HAVE

        19  CONTRIBUTED TO IT, THE OP-ED PIECE THAT BEGINS AT THE

        20  BOTTOM OF THE FIRST PAGE AND CARRIES OVER TO THE SECOND

        21  AND THIRD PAGES OF THE DOCUMENT, IS SOMETHING THAT YOU

        22  PARTICIPATED IN THE WRITING OF AND AGREED WITH WHAT WAS

        23  SAID?

        24  A.   YES, SIR.

        25  Q.   LET ME GO TO THE SECOND PAGE OF THE DOCUMENT AND THE
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         1  SECOND PARAGRAPH WHERE YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT STANDARDS.

         2  AND YOU SAY, "SOME OF THESE STANDARDS HAVE BEEN

         3  ESTABLISHED BY STANDARDS BOARDS, BUT MOST HAVE BEEN

         4  ESTABLISHED BY THE MARKETPLACE.  WINDOWS AND INTEL

         5  PROCESSORS ARE GOOD EXAMPLES OF THE LATTER.  WHEN A

         6  STANDARD HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED, THOSE WHO CONTROL THE

         7  STANDARD HAVE A GREAT DEAL OF INFLUENCE IN THE

         8  MARKETPLACE.  IN SOME CASES, THIS INFLUENCE CAN RESULT IN

         9  A NATURAL MONOPOLY, I.E., A SITUATION WHERE IT IS MORE

        10  EFFICIENT FOR SOCIETY TO HAVE AN IMPORTANT RESOURCE

        11  CONTROLLED BY A SINGLE PERSON OR COMPANY."

        12           AND YOU WERE TALKING THERE, AT LEAST IN PART,

        13  ABOUT THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT, SIR?

        14  A.   YES.

        15  Q.   THE NEXT SENTENCE SAYS, "A HISTORICAL PARALLEL FOR A

        16  NATURAL MONOPOLY IS THE RAILROAD INDUSTRY.  CERTAINLY

        17  WOULD NOT BE A GOOD USE OF SOCIETY'S RESOURCES TO HAVE

        18  COMPETING RAILROAD COMPANIES EACH RUN THEIR OWN TRACKS

        19  BETWEEN THE SAME TWO CITIES, WHEN ONLY ONE TRACK IS NEEDED

        20  TO HANDLE THE REQUIRED CAPACITY.  SINCE IT MAKES SENSE TO

        21  ONLY HAVE ONE SET OF TRACKS, THE COMPANY THAT CONTROLS THE

        22  TRACKS HAS A GREAT DEAL OF POWER AND THE OPPORTUNITY TO

        23  ABUSE THIS POWER.  IT WAS THIS VERY ABUSE OF POWER BY THE

        24  RAILROADS THAT WAS ONE OF THE DRIVING FORCES BEHIND THE

        25  ADOPTION OF OUR ANTITRUST LAWS IN THE LATE 19TH AND EARLY
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         1  20TH CENTURY.  IN SOME CASES, THIS ALLOWED THE GOVERNMENT

         2  TO BREAK UP COMPANIES, AND OTHER CASES, IT WAS THE BASIS

         3  FOR THE GOVERNMENT TO COME IN AND REGULATE CERTAIN

         4  INDUSTRIES LIKE THE RAILROAD.  WHILE I THINK THERE ARE

         5  STRONG ECONOMIC PARALLELS BETWEEN THE NATURAL MONOPOLIES

         6  OF THE INDUSTRIAL AGE AND THOSE OF THE INFORMATION AGE, I

         7  HAVE DOUBTS THAT THE SOLUTIONS SHOULD BE THE SAME.

         8           NOW, WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT THE NATURAL MONOPOLIES

         9  OF THE INDUSTRIAL AGE, YOU ARE TALKING, AT LEAST IN PART,

        10  ABOUT THE RAILROAD INDUSTRY; IS THAT CORRECT?

        11  A.   YES.

        12  Q.   AND WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT THE NATURAL MONOPOLIES OF THE

        13  INFORMATION AGE, YOU ARE TALKING, AT LEAST IN PART, ABOUT

        14  THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT, SIR?

        15  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        16  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK NEXT AND LAST AT GOVERNMENT

        17  EXHIBIT 2276, WHICH IS AN EXCERPT FROM A BOOK ENTITLED "IN

        18  THE COMPANY OF GIANTS."  AND WE COVERED THIS EXCERPT AT

        19  YOUR DEPOSITION.

        20           MR. BOIES:  AND I WOULD OFFER GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        21  2276.

        22           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION.

        23           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 2276 IS ADMITTED.

        24                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2276 WAS

        25                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)
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         1  BY MR. BOIES:

         2  Q.   THIS IS A SERIES OF QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS POSED TO

         3  YOU, AND YOUR RESPONSES; CORRECT, SIR?

         4  A.   YES.

         5  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE 56 OF THE BOOK,

         6  WHICH IS THE NEXT-TO-LAST PAGE OF THE EXHIBIT.  AND AT THE

         7  BOTTOM YOU ARE ASKED, (READING):

         8                "QUESTION:  I WANTED TO TALK ABOUT YOUR

         9           RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT.  WHY DOESN'T

        10           MICROSOFT JUST PUT MORE OF YOUR PRODUCT'S

        11           FUNCTIONALITY INTO ITS OWN PRODUCTS?

        12                ANSWER:  THEY ALREADY HAVE.

        13                QUESTION:  SO, AREN'T YOU AFRAID THAT YOU

        14           YOU'LL BE PUSHED OUT OF THE MARKET?

        15                ANSWER:  NO, NOT REALLY.  OUR BUSINESS ADDS

        16           VALUE TO THE OPERATING SYSTEMS.  IT'S THE MOST

        17           PROVEN SOFTWARE BUSINESS IN EXISTENCE.  WE ADD

        18           VALUE TO KNOWLEDGE USERS.  WE HAVE A TREMENDOUS

        19           INFRASTRUCTURE THAT WORKS CLOSELY WITH MICROSOFT.

        20           THIS IS A TREMENDOUS BARRIER TO COMPETITION."

        21           NOW, WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT THE INFRASTRUCTURE THAT

        22  WORKS CLOSELY WITH MICROSOFT, YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT

        23  SYMANTEC'S INFRASTRUCTURE; CORRECT?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   AND WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT THAT BEING A TREMENDOUS
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         1  BARRIER TO COMPETITION, YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT A BARRIER TO

         2  COMPETITION WITH SYMANTEC; CORRECT?

         3  A.   YES.  YES, A BARRIER THAT SYMANTEC ENJOYS RELATIVE TO

         4  OTHER COMPETITORS.

         5  Q.   RIGHT.  AND YOU GO ON TO DESCRIBE ABOUT THE CLOSE

         6  PERSONAL RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND SYMANTEC AND

         7  HOW IT HAPPENS AT MANY DIFFERENT LEVELS OF THE COMPANY;

         8  CORRECT?

         9  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        10  Q.   AND THEN YOU SAY, QUOTE, THEY, MEANING MICROSOFT,

        11  CAN'T HAVE RELATIONSHIPS WITH MANY DIFFERENT COMPANIES.

        12  THAT'S THE KIND OF STUFF THAT IS A HUGE BARRIER TO OUR

        13  COMPETITION, CLOSED QUOTE.

        14           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        15  A.   YES, I SEE THAT.

        16  Q.   AND WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT SOMETHING BEING A HUGE

        17  BARRIER TO OUR COMPETITION, YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT SOMETHING

        18  BEING A HUGE BARRIER TO OTHER COMPANIES COMPETING WITH

        19  SYMANTEC; CORRECT?

        20  A.   YES.

        21  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT THE NEXT PAGE OF THIS

        22  DOCUMENT.  THE FIRST QUESTION IS, (READING):

        23                "WHAT ABOUT MICROSOFT'S CLOSED SYSTEM

        24           SOFTWARE?"

        25                YOU SAY, "EVERY SYSTEM'S CLOSED.  EVERYONE
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         1           HAS THEIR OWN ADVANTAGE.

         2                QUESTION:  WELL, WHAT ABOUT UNIX?"

         3           AND YOU THEN TALK ABOUT UNIX.

         4           AND THEN IN THE SECOND PARAGRAPH YOU SAY:

         5                "MICROSOFT'S DAY WILL COME.  I MEAN, NO ONE

         6           IS INVINCIBLE.  IN A BUSINESS WHERE TECHNOLOGY

         7           RACES SO QUICKLY, IT'S FUNNY HOW PEOPLE SPEND SO

         8           MUCH TIME ON MICROSOFT.  MICROSOFT ISN'T LIKE THE

         9           ROBBER BARONS WHO HAD AN IMPENETRABLE IRON GRIP

        10           ON THE INFRASTRUCTURE.  THE ROBBER BARONS HAD

        11           ECONOMICS OF SCALE WITH THEIR FACTORIES AND

        12           RIGHT-OF-WAY WITH RAILROADS.  THERE WAS NO WAY TO

        13           COMPETE WITH THEM.

        14                THIS IS SO DIFFERENT.  I THINK THAT

        15           MONOPOLIES ARE ACTUALLY REALLY GOOD IN THIS

        16           ENVIRONMENT BECAUSE THE MONOPOLY SERVES THE

        17           CUSTOMER BY PROVIDING STANDARDS, AND THE PACE OF

        18           TECHNOLOGY EVENTUALLY DOES THE MONOPOLY IN, AND

        19           CREATES A STABILITY OF PLATEAUS."

        20           WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT MONOPOLIES ARE ACTUALLY

        21  REALLY GOOD IN THIS ENVIRONMENT, YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT THE

        22  OPERATING SYSTEM ENVIRONMENT; CORRECT, SIR?

        23  A.   I THINK IN THIS WHOLE CONTEXT OF THIS ARTICLE--I

        24  MEAN, THERE'S (SIC) TWO THINGS.  ONE, I'M TALKING BROADER

        25  THAN JUST OPERATING SYSTEMS, BUT I'M TALKING ABOUT THE PC
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         1  INDUSTRY AS A WHOLE.  I DON'T HAVE THE ACTUAL TRANSCRIPTS

         2  OF THE INTERVIEW, AND I DIDN'T HAVE EDIT CONTROL OVER WHAT

         3  GOES IN THE BOOK, SO I DON'T KNOW HOW MUCH OF THIS WAS

         4  FILLED IN.  BUT THE PICTURE HERE THAT I TRIED TO

         5  COMMUNICATE, I THINK, IS SUMMED UP AT THE BOTTOM, WHICH IS

         6  THAT THERE IS CONTINUING INFLECTION POINTS IN THE

         7  INDUSTRY.  THESE INFLECTION POINTS ARE RELATIVELY SHORT

         8  DURATION.  AND DURING THAT PERIOD OF TIME, IN A PARTICULAR

         9  PLATFORM CATEGORY, A SINGLE OPERATING SYSTEM STANDARD HAS

        10  SEEMED TO HAVE EMERGED AND BENEFITED CUSTOMERS.

        11           WE CHOOSE--CHOSE AT SYMANTEC, WHEN I WAS THERE,

        12  TO MAKE IT A BUSINESS POLICY TO BUILD STRONG RELATIONSHIPS

        13  WITH THESE PROVIDERS OF A LONG-TERM NATURE AND USE THAT AS

        14  A COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE, I.E., ALL THE DISCUSSIONS OF WE

        15  WHY WE COULDN'T TAKE A CHEAP SHOT HERE, CHEAP SHOT THERE,

        16  BUT TAKE A LOOK AT THE LONG-TERM RELATIONSHIP.

        17           SO, I DO THINK, THOUGH, THAT THIS IS MUCH BROADER

        18  THAN JUST OPERATING SYSTEMS, ALTHOUGH THE AUTHOR SEEMS TO

        19  BE FOCUSING IN HERE ON ONLY OPERATING SYSTEM DISCUSSIONS.

        20  Q.   WELL, THE AUTHOR OF WHAT I READ WAS YOU; CORRECT?  IT

        21  WAS YOU THAT WAS SAYING "I THINK THAT MONOPOLIES ARE

        22  ACTUALLY REALLY GOOD IN THIS ENVIRONMENT."

        23  A.   I HAVE NO REASON TO BELIEVE I DIDN'T SAY THAT.  THE

        24  AUTHOR OF THE BOOK INTERVIEWED ME, TAPED IT, TRANSCRIBED

        25  IT IN THE BOOK.  I HAVE NO IDEA HOW MUCH OF THE ACTUAL
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         1  INTERVIEW HE USED, HOW MUCH I ELABORATED IN THAT INTERVIEW

         2  ON THESE ISSUES RELATIVE TO WHAT I'M SAYING HERE.

         3           BUT THE POINT IS, THE INFLECTION POINTS ARE

         4  FREQUENT, THE ADVANTAGES GO AWAY AT THE FLEXION POINT.

         5  HISTORY HAS PROVED THAT, SO I CONCLUDE THAT THIS HAS BEEN

         6  A GOOD THING FOR THE INDUSTRY.

         7           I SAY AGAIN, AS I SAID THIS MORNING, I'M USING

         8  THE WORD "MONOPOLY" AS AN AMATEUR, AND I ASKED FOR AMATEUR

         9  STATUS IN USING THAT WORD.  AND TO BE INTERPRETING THIS AS

        10  A USE AS A PROFESSIONAL PERSON WOULD BE WRONG.  I'M NOT

        11  FOCUSING HERE ON THE LEGAL TERMS OF THAT, BUT RATHER

        12  TRYING TO FOCUS IN ON WHAT THE DYNAMICS ARE IN THE

        13  INDUSTRY.

        14  Q.   I ASSUME THAT YOU WERE NOT USING THIS IN A

        15  TECHNICAL-LEGAL SENSE.  YOU WERE USING IT IN THE SENSE

        16  THAT AN ORDINARY BUSINESSMAN WOULD THINK OF A MONOPOLY IN

        17  HIS BUSINESS; IS THAT FAIR?

        18  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHAT A NORMAL BUSINESSPERSON WOULD THINK

        19  ABOUT THIS.

        20  Q.   FOR YOU, ANYWAY.

        21  A.   WELL, LET ME JUST SAY WHAT I THINK, WHICH IS THE

        22  PERSON THAT SAID IT.  I THINK THAT CONSISTENTLY THROUGH

        23  THESE INFLECTION POINTS THERE HAVE BEEN STRONG OPERATING

        24  SYSTEMS, AND EACH AND EVERY ONE OF THEM HAS BEEN DONE IN

        25  BY THE NEXT GENERATION.  THAT'S WHAT I HAVE OBSERVED FOR
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         1  25 YEARS.  AND THE SYSTEM WORKS VERY NATURALLY TO DO THAT.

         2  Q.   LET ME JUST TRY TO GO BACK TO WHAT YOU SAID HERE.

         3  WHEN YOU SAID "I THINK MONOPOLIES ARE ACTUALLY REALLY GOOD

         4  IN THIS ENVIRONMENT," IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT YOU WERE

         5  USING MONOPOLIES THERE IN THE WAY THAT YOU, AS A

         6  BUSINESSMAN, ORDINARILY UNDERSTOOD THAT TERM?

         7  A.   AS I JUST DESCRIBED IT, AS THIS TRANSIENT FIVE, MAYBE

         8  MORE YEAR PERIOD WHERE THIS OPERATING SYSTEM IS DOMINANT,

         9  PROVIDES A STABLE PLATFORM FOR DEVELOPMENT AND GROWTH OF

        10  THE INDUSTRY, AND EVERY SINGLE TIME THEY HAVE BEEN

        11  ECLIPSED BY A NEW GENERATION.

        12  Q.   NOW, YOU JUST SAID THERE THIS TRANSIENT PERIOD OF

        13  TIME OF MAYBE FIVE, MAYBE MORE, YEARS.  WHEN I ASKED YOU

        14  AT YOUR DEPOSITION HOW LONG YOU THOUGHT IT WOULD TAKE,

        15  POSSIBLY, FOR MICROSOFT'S OPERATING SYSTEM POSITION TO BE

        16  ERODED, YOU SAID THAT A DECADE WAS A GOOD ORDER OF

        17  MAGNITUDE, DID YOU NOT, SIR?

        18  A.   I THOUGHT I SAID FIVE TO TEN YEARS, AND THAT'S

        19  CONSISTENT WITH WHAT I'M SAYING HERE.  BUT I'M TALKING

        20  ABOUT FROM THE INTRODUCTION OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM, NOT

        21  FROM THE DAY OF THE DEPOSITION, OF COURSE, BUT I THINK

        22  THAT'S CONSISTENT.  I MAY HAVE ONLY SAID TEN, BUT YOU ARE

        23  GOING TO READ IT TO ME?

        24  Q.   YES.

        25  A.   THANK YOU.  MUST HAVE SAID TEN.
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         1  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION BEGINNING AT PAGE 184.

         2  I'M GOING TO WANT TO GO OVER TO PAGE 187.  AND FOR

         3  CONTEXTUAL PURPOSES, YOU MIGHT WANT TO LOOK AT PAGE 183,

         4  BECAUSE THAT'S WHERE WE MAKE CLEAR THAT WE ARE TALKING

         5  ABOUT THE SAME DISCUSSION ABOUT HOW MICROSOFT MAY BE DONE

         6  IN.

         7  A.   OKAY.

         8  Q.   AT THE TOP OF 184, AGAIN WE MAKE CLEAR THAT WE ARE

         9  TALKING ABOUT YOUR VIEW THAT THE PACE OF TECHNOLOGY

        10  EVENTUALLY DOES THE MONOPOLY IN.  AND THEN AT LINE 13, I

        11  SAY, (READING):

        12                "QUESTION:  NOW, HOW LONG WILL IT, IN YOUR

        13           JUDGMENT, TAKE FOR TECHNOLOGY TO DO IN

        14           MICROSOFT'S POSITION IN THE PC OPERATING SYSTEM?"

        15           AND YOU SAY:

        16                "WELL, IT'S HARD TO PREDICT THE FUTURE

        17           BECAUSE I DON'T KNOW HOW MICROSOFT WILL RESPOND,

        18           BUT DOS HAD A LIFE OF--WHAT?--SEVEN YEARS, SIX

        19           YEARS.  AND AFTER THAT, THE TECHNOLOGY SUPPORTED

        20           GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACES AND, YOU KNOW, WHAT IF,

        21           COULD HAVE BEEN, IF SOMEONE ELSE HAD BEEN THERE,

        22           MICROSOFT HAD TO DELIVER WINDOWS OR WOULD HAVE

        23           BEEN DOWNHILL.  HOW LONG THE CURRENT GENERATION

        24           OF COMPLEX OPERATING SYSTEMS AND COMPLEX CHIPS, I

        25           DON'T KNOW.  BUT I DO BELIEVE ITS DAYS ARE
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         1           NUMBERED.

         2                QUESTION:  CAN YOU GIVE ME SOME RANGE OF HOW

         3           LONG YOU THINK IT WOULD TAKE IN TERMS OF EVEN A

         4           RANGE OF YEARS?

         5                ANSWER:  YEAH.  DECADE IS A GOOD ORDER OF

         6           MAGNITUDE, THESE TECHNOLOGIES.  THE POINT HERE IS

         7           THAT TECHNOLOGY RACES FORWARD."

         8           AND THEN, WITH SOME COLLOQUY WITH MR. HOLLEY AND

         9  SOME BACK AND FORTH, AT THE BOTTOM OF PAGE ONE 86, I SAY:

        10                "QUESTION:  AND ALL I'M TRYING TO DO--AND

        11           YOU MAY HAVE GIVEN ME AN ANSWER, BUT I WASN'T

        12           CLEAR WHETHER THE ANSWER APPLIED, AND I COULD

        13           PROBABLY FIGURE IT OUT IF I HAD THE TRANSCRIPT TO

        14           READ, BUT I WAS TRYING TO MAKE SURE THAT THE

        15           ANSWER YOU GAVE ME APPLIED TO WHAT WE ARE TALKING

        16           ABOUT HERE, WHICH IS MICROSOFT'S POSITION IN

        17           OPERATING SYSTEMS.

        18                ANSWER:  AND WHAT I SAID IS IN SITUATIONS

        19           LIKE THIS, SOMEWHERE BETWEEN A DECADE AND MAYBE

        20           HALF A DECADE, A DECADE IS A GOOD FIRST ORDER OF

        21           HOW LONG TECHNOLOGIES LIKE THIS SEEM TO LAST."

        22  A.   AFTER ALL THAT, I GUESS I SAID FIVE ONCE AND TEN

        23  TWICE, SO I STAND CORRECTED.  THAT WOULD AVERAGE, LIKE,

        24  SEVEN.

        25           THIS IS--SORRY, APOLOGIZE FOR BEING RUDE, BUT THE
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         1  POINT I'M TRYING TO MAKE IS THESE PLATEAUS ARE SHORT, AND

         2  THEY GET ECLIPSED.  AND WHEN THEY GET ECLIPSED, THEY GO

         3  DOWN VERY, VERY QUICKLY.  AND WE HAVE BEEN WITH GRAPHICAL

         4  USER INTERFACES 32-BIT NOW FOR FIVE YEARS.

         5  Q.   ALL I WAS TRYING TO DO IS MAKE CLEAR WHAT YOU MEANT

         6  BY "SHORT" AND WHAT YOU MEANT BY "RACING FORWARD" AND WHAT

         7  YOU MEANT BY "TRANSIENT."  AND I TAKE IT WHAT YOU MEANT IS

         8  WHAT IS STATED IN THIS DEPOSITION?

         9  A.   FIVE TO TEN YEARS.

        10           MR. BOIES:  I HAVE NO MORE QUESTIONS.

        11           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  MR. HOLLEY, WILL HAVE YOU

        12  SOME REDIRECT?

        13           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, IF I COULD HAVE FIVE

        14  MINUTES?

        15           THE COURT:  OF COURSE.

        16           MR. HOLLEY:  I THINK I HAVE A VERY SHORT

        17  REDIRECT.

        18           THE COURT:  WE PROBABLY WILL NOT GET TO YOUR

        19  DOCUMENTS TONIGHT, MR. BOIES.

        20           MR. BOIES:  I APPREHENDED THAT.

        21           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL TAKE A BRIEF

        22  RECESS.

        23           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        24                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

        25  BY MR. HOLLEY:
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         1  Q.   MR. EUBANKS, I WOULD LIKE YOU TO TAKE A LOOK, IF YOU

         2  WOULD, SIR, AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2061, WHICH IS YOUR

         3  E-MAIL TO DAN GILMORE OF THE SAN JOSE MERCURY NEWS.  AND

         4  IN PARTICULAR, I WOULD LIKE YOU TO LOOK AT THE SECOND PAGE

         5  OF THE DOCUMENT, BEGINNING WITH THE WORD--WHERE MR. BOIES

         6  STOPPED READING, WHICH IS IN THE PARAGRAPH THAT BEGINS,

         7  "WHILE I THINK THAT THERE ARE STRONG ECONOMIC PARALLELS,"

         8  AND THEN STARTING "GOVERNMENT REGULATION, WHILE SOMETIMES

         9  NEEDED, IS ALMOST NEVER EFFICIENT."  THE PARTICULAR

        10  SENTENCE I WANT TO ASK YOU ABOUT, SIR, IS THE ONE A COUPLE

        11  OF LINES BELOW THAT THAT SAYS, "BARRIERS TO ENTRY ARE

        12  CONTROLLED BY THE CUSTOMERS."

        13           DO YOU SEE THAT, MR. EUBANKS?

        14  A.   YES, I DO.

        15  Q.   AND CAN YOU EXPLAIN TO ME WHAT YOU MEAN BY THAT, SIR.

        16  A.   IN THE END, WITH INCREASING CAPABILITY, CUSTOMERS ARE

        17  DRIVING THIS BUSINESS, AND THEY HAVE CHOICE, AND THEY MAKE

        18  THAT CHOICE.  SO, I THINK THE ONE THING INTERNET IS

        19  SHOWING US, NOT ONLY IN OUR INDUSTRY BUT IN OTHER

        20  INDUSTRIES, CUSTOMER IS KING.  SO, CUSTOMERS REALLY DRIVE

        21  FOR NEW TECHNOLOGY.  AND ONCE THEY START SHIFTING, IT'S

        22  AMAZING HOW QUICKLY THEY SHIFT.  SO, SOMETHING THAT'S

        23  DOMINANT ONE DAY REALLY DOES BECOME VERY INSIGNIFICANT

        24  QUICKLY.

        25  Q.   I WOULD LIKE YOU TO LOOK, SIR, IN THE NEXT PARAGRAPH,
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         1  THE SECOND SENTENCE, WHICH READS, "ONE OF THE GREAT THINGS

         2  ABOUT TECHNOLOGY IS THAT IT CAN DRIVE CHANGE QUICKLY.  IF

         3  THE PERSON WHO CONTROLS THE TECHNOLOGICAL STANDARDS

         4  ABUSES"--AND THEN IT MOVES ON TO THE NEXT PAGE--OH, AND

         5  IT'S NOT THERE.

         6           DOES THE GOVERNMENT HAVE A COMPLETE VERSION OF

         7  EXHIBIT 2081?

         8  A.   IT LOOKS LIKE THE COPY MACHINE CUT OFF THE TOP LINE.

         9           MR. HOLLEY:  IF YOUR HONOR COULD BEAR WITH ME

        10  JUST A MOMENT, I COULD GET A COMPLETE VERSION OF THIS

        11  DOCUMENT.

        12           THE COURT:  IF HE IS THE AUTHOR OF IT, OR THE

        13  REPUTED AUTHOR OF IT, MAYBE HE KNOWS WHAT THE MISSING

        14  WORDS ARE.

        15  BY MR. HOLLEY:

        16  Q.   WELL, WHEN YOU SAY ON THE NEXT PAGE THAT OLD

        17  STANDARDS WILL BE ABANDONED IN FAVOR OF A DIFFERENT

        18  STANDARD, WE HAVE SEEN THIS TIME AND AGAIN, WHAT DO YOU

        19  MEAN BY THAT, MR. EUBANKS?

        20  A.   STANDARDS ARE ONLY AS VIABLE AS THEY'RE REALLY

        21  MEETING THE CUSTOMER NEEDS.

        22           THE SECOND, THE CUSTOMER EITHER HAS A BETTER

        23  CHOICE, LIKE 1-2-3 OVER VISICALIC, OR THE WAY AOL BECAME

        24  DOMINANT OVER COMPUSERVE.  I MEAN, COMPUSERVE WAS THE

        25  SERVICE OF CHOICE, AND ALMOST OVERNIGHT, AOL LEAPED INTO
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         1  THE LEAD AND EVENTUALLY ENDED UP BUYING COMPUSERVE.

         2           SO, WHEN THE CUSTOMERS AREN'T BEING SERVED, THERE

         3  IS RAPID CHANGE IN THIS INDUSTRY.

         4  Q.   WHEN YOU USED THE WORD--THE TERM "NATURAL MONOPOLY"

         5  IN GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2081, WERE YOU REFERRING TO

         6  SOMETHING OTHER THAN THE SORT OF STANDARDS YOU JUST

         7  DESCRIBED IN THE ANSWER TO MY LAST QUESTION?

         8  A.   I'M NOT SURE.  YOUR QUESTIONS WERE SUPPOSED TO BE THE

         9  EASY ONES.

        10           I DO REGRET USING THE WORD "NATURAL MONOPOLY,"

        11  BUT THE CONCEPT OF THE NATURAL MONOPOLY I'M TALKING ABOUT

        12  IS A SYSTEM TENDS TO MOVE TO BE THE DOMINANT IN, SAY, THE

        13  PC PLATFORM OR HAND-HELD PLATFORMS FOR SOME PERIOD OF

        14  TIME.  BUT QUICKLY EITHER A NEW TECHNOLOGY OR POOR

        15  EXECUTION BY THE PERSON WHO HAS THAT POSITION CAUSES VERY

        16  QUICK CHANGE, AND I THINK THAT'S THE POINT I'M TRYING TO

        17  MAKE AND, I THINK, HOW THEY TIE TOGETHER.  I DON'T KNOW IF

        18  I'M ANSWERING YOUR QUESTION.

        19  Q.   YOU HAVE.

        20           MR. HOLLEY:  AND THAT'S MY LAST QUESTION, YOUR

        21  HONOR.

        22           MR. BOIES:  I HAVE ONLY ONE, YOUR HONOR.

        23           THE COURT:  SURE.

        24                     RECROSS-EXAMINATION

        25  BY MR. BOIES:
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         1  Q.   IN THAT CONNECTION, I WOULD LIKE THE WITNESS TO BE

         2  HANDED GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2292.

         3           THIS PURPORTS TO BE AN ARTICLE FROM USA TODAY,

         4  DATED OCTOBER 21, 1991.  OR MORE ACCURATELY, IT IS A COPY

         5  OF AN ARTICLE FROM USA TODAY, DATED OCTOBER 21, 1991.  IT

         6  PURPORTS TO BE SERIES OF QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS DIRECTED TO

         7  YOU.

         8           DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO BELIEVE IT IS ANYTHING

         9  OTHER THAN THAT, SIR?

        10  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER THIS INTERVIEW NOR RECOGNIZE THE

        11  DOCUMENT.  I HAVE NO REASON TO BELIEVE IT ISN'T WHAT YOU

        12  SAY IT IS.

        13           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD OFFER GOVERNMENT

        14  EXHIBIT 2292.

        15           MR. HOLLEY:  OBJECTION.  HEARSAY.

        16           THE COURT:  WELL, IT PURPORTS TO BE A DIALOGUE.

        17           MR. HOLLEY:  I THOUGHT, YOUR HONOR, MR. EUBANKS

        18  TESTIFIED HE DOESN'T HAVE A RECOLLECTION OF GIVING THIS

        19  INTERVIEW OR SEEING THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE.  I'M NOT SURE

        20  THERE IS ANY FOUNDATION THAT HE ACTUALLY DID.

        21           THE COURT:  WHY DON'T YOU LOOK THROUGH IT AND SEE

        22  IF YOU DISAVOW ANY OF THE QUOTATIONS ATTRIBUTABLE TO YOU

        23  THERE.

        24  BY MR. BOIES:

        25  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME FOCUS ON THE SECOND QUESTION AND
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         1  ANSWER, WHICH IS THE ONE I REALLY WANTED TO FOCUS ON,

         2  MR. EUBANKS, (READING):

         3                "QUESTION:  BUT WE ARE NOT REALLY GOING TO

         4           SEE THAT, ARE WE?  WON'T PC'S RUN DIFFERENT

         5           SOFTWARE AND RUN ON DIFFERENT MICROPROCESSORS

         6           THAT WILL MAKE IT TOUGH TO SHARE INFORMATION?

         7           AND THEN YOU WERE QUOTED AS SAYING, QUOTE:

         8                I THINK YOU WILL SEE IT.  MICROSOFT HAS ITS

         9           OWN OPERATING SYSTEM FOR IBM PC'S, BUT THEY MAKE

        10           A TON OF MONEY WRITING SOFTWARE FOR THE APPLE

        11           MACINTOSH, TOO.  THERE WILL BE BATTLES, BUT FOR

        12           MARKET SHARE, NOT TO SEE WHO IS THE SINGLE

        13           WINNER.  CUSTOMERS WOULD NOT WIN IF THERE WAS

        14           ONLY ONE STANDARD.

        15           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        16  A.   YES, SIR.

        17  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO BELIEVE THAT YOU DID NOT

        18  GIVE THAT ANSWER TO THAT QUESTION?

        19  A.   I MEAN, I DON'T REMEMBER GIVING THIS.  I HAVE NO

        20  REASON TO BELIEVE THAT I DIDN'T GIVE IT.

        21           MR. BOIES:  I WOULD OFFER IT ON THAT BASIS, YOUR

        22  HONOR.

        23           THE COURT:  PRIOR INCONSISTENT STATEMENT?

        24           MR. HOLLEY:  WELL, I DON'T THINK THAT'S BEEN

        25  ESTABLISHED, YOUR HONOR.  I CONTINUE TO OBJECT TO--
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         1           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  OBJECTION IS OVERRULED.

         2  GOVERNMENT'S 2292 IS ADMITTED.

         3                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2292 WAS

         4                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         5           MR. BOIES:  I HAVE NO MORE QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

         6           MR. HOLLEY:  NO QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

         7           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  MR. EUBANKS, YOU ARE

         8  EXCUSED.

         9           (WITNESS STEPS DOWN.)

        10           MR. WARDEN:  MAY WE APPROACH?

        11           THE COURT:  SURE.

        12           (BENCH CONFERENCE.)

        13           MR. WARDEN:  DEAN SCHMALENSEE WILL BE HERE

        14  MONDAY, AND WE TOLD YOUR HONOR IN CHAMBERS THAT DAVID HAD

        15  TO BE AWAY A MORNING NEXT WEEK.  IT TURNS OUT IT'S

        16  TUESDAY, NOT WEDNESDAY.  SO, OUR INTENTION IS TO USE

        17  TUESDAY MORNING TO DO ALL THE STUFF, PUT IN ALL OF OUR

        18  EXHIBITS THAT WE HAVE, WE STIPULATED THAT OR TO ARGUE THE

        19  MOTION FOR THE ONES THEY HAVEN'T STIPULATED.

        20           THE COURT:  I HAVE SEEN WHAT'S COMING.

        21           MR. WARDEN:  THERE MAY BE A LOT OF BOXES, BUT

        22  THEY'RE NOT GOING TO TAKE A LONG TIME IN OPEN COURT.

        23           THE COURT:  WHAT YOU ARE SUGGESTING IS WE DEFER

        24  MR.'S BOIES'S DOCUMENTS UNTIL THEN?

        25           MR. WARDEN:  WE WERE GOING TO INQUIRE WHAT YOU
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         1  WANTED TO DO ABOUT THAT, ACTUALLY.

         2           THE COURT:  THAT'S FINE.  WE COULD DO IT THEN.

         3  WE COULD DO IT ANYTIME.  WE'LL HAVE A GENERAL CLEANUP DAY

         4  WITH RESPECT TO ALL ITEMS THAT EVERYBODY HAS TO MAKE SURE

         5  HAS BEEN NAILED DOWN.

         6           MR. WARDEN:  WE ONLY HAVE DEAN SCHMALENSEE NEXT

         7  WEEK WHO WILL BE HERE FIRST THING MONDAY.  WE DO LOSE HALF

         8  A DAY OF HIM, WHICH WE WILL USE.  WOULD THE COURT BE ABLE

         9  TO SIT ON FRIDAY, IF IT'S NECESSARY?  I HOPE IT WON'T BE

        10  NECESSARY TO GO MORE THAN THE THREE AND A HALF DAYS, BUT

        11  WE NEED TO FINISH HIM NEXT WEEK.

        12           THE COURT:  WELL, IF IT BECOMES ABSOLUTELY

        13  ESSENTIAL, THE ANSWER IS YES, BUT MY FERVENT WISH WOULD BE

        14  TO AVOID IT IF I CAN POSSIBLY DO SO.

        15           MR. WARDEN:  I THINK EVERYBODY CONCURS WITH THE

        16  COURT'S FERVENT WISH.

        17           MR. BOIES:  I THINK WE ARE ALL IN ONE MIND THAT

        18  IN THE END OF FEBRUARY SOMEONE QUOTED ME SAYING THE THREE

        19  OF US WERE THE THREE OLDEST PEOPLE IN THE COURTROOM, AND

        20  WE WERE ALL TOGETHER, AND WE WERE GOING TO PREVAIL.

        21           THE COURT:  FAIR ENOUGH.  ALL RIGHT.  SEE YOU

        22  TOMORROW.  SEE YOU MONDAY MORNING.

        23           (END OF BENCH CONFERENCE.)

        24           THE COURT:  COURT WILL STAND IN RECESS UNTIL

        25  MONDAY MORNING.
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         1           (WHEREUPON, AT 5:10 P.M., THE HEARING WAS

         2  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00, MONDAY, JUNE 21, 1999.)
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

         2

         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RMR, COURT REPORTER, DO

         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE

         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO

         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER

         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING

         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE

         9  PROCEEDINGS.

        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,

        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS

        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE

        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.

        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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        24
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